# POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar (POLARIS) User Guide 1.9



March 2017 Department of Veterans Affairs Office of Information and Technology (OI&T)

## **Revision History**

NOTE: The revision history cycle begins once changes or enhancements are requested after the document has been baselined.

Date	Revision	Description	Author
3/02/17	1.9	Updated POLARIS Workflow, including detailed workflows for Data Center Releases or Single Site Releases and for Multi-site Releases or Multi-site Infrastructure Changes added to the guide as Appendix A.5; updated images for POLARIS Landing Page, navigation to My Releases and for lists exceeding 100 items; additional guidance provided for IOC entries; correction to section 4.5.3: Cancelling and Existing Item; clarification provided on Back-out Plans and Rollback Plans	POLARIS Calendar Team
11/29/16	1.8	Updates to Section 4: Using the Software to clarify recommendation on the use of templates based on duration or recurrence of release/activity, and a note on CD2 Approval for entries with the Target Environment of IOC – Production. Addition of new section entitled Appendix A.4: Initial Operating Capability (IOC), which includes information provided by VHA Data Informatics on IOC Evaluations.	POLARIS Calendar Team
10/30/16	1.7	Updated to include new feature for metric reports (see <u>Section 4.6.5 View Metrics</u> <u>Reports</u> ). Updated images throughout to include new link to Metrics. Updated images for Target Environment to include addition of IOC – Production, and removal of checkboxes for Installation Instructions and Successful Readiness Review.	POLARIS Calendar Team
9/30/16	1.6	Updates to section 1.2.3 Coordination and 4.3 Adding a New POLARIS Release to address when entries should be added to the calendar	POLARIS Calendar Team
9/14/16	1.5	Addition of new section 1.1.1 Governance, updates to section 3.6 CRISP, VistA, or Other Software Patching Across Multiple Systems, and updated POLARIS workflow diagram	POLARIS Calendar Team

Date	Revision	Description	Author
7/25/16	1.4	Updated guide using current User Guide Template from the VA OI&T VIP Assessment and Reporting SharePoint site; updated content addressing required POLARIS entries in relation to Master CO and CRISP patching; added instructions on how to delete templates; added updates to address entries with Calendar Review Status = Needs Revision; added NSD and updated instructions for troubleshooting and user feedback; updated workflow chart	POLARIS Calendar Team
6/01/16	1.3	Updated content describing options for searching for a release; added instructions for new form for entering Field Ops releases; new content for Calendar Review Status = Needs Revision; Postponed added to drop down list for Execution Status; and Accessibility View.	POLARIS Calendar Team
2/14/16	1.2	Updated images and instructions to include: Summary field and Save as POLARIS Template in the New Item Form; new Release Templates on Quick Launch navigation bar; how to create and use templates to capture recurring items on the calendar; and updated excerpt of the data dictionary that appears in appendix to include new or missing fields/features or update content for Summary, Description, Save as POLARIS Template and Cancel button.	POLARIS Calendar Team
1/22/16	1.1	Added new content for Search, Resources and Links, and User Feedback form. Updated images for the New Item form. Updated navigation within the document.	POLARIS Calendar Team
12/31/15	1.0	Initial draft of the User Guide	POLARIS Calendar Team

.

### **Artifact Rationale**

Per the Veteran-focused Integrated Process (VIP) Guide, the User's Guide is required to be completed prior to Critical Decision Point #2 (CD2), with the expectation that it will be updated as needed. A User Guide is a technical communication document intended to give assistance to people using a particular system, such as VistA end users. It is usually written by a technical writer, although it can also be written by programmers, product or project managers, or other technical staff. Most user guides contain both a written guide and the associated images. In the case of computer applications, it is usual to include screenshots of the human-machine interfaces, and hardware manuals often include clear, simplified diagrams. The language used is matched to the intended audience, with jargon kept to a minimum or explained thoroughly. The User Guide is a mandatory, build-level document, and should be updated to reflect the contents of the most recently deployed build. The sections documented herein are required if applicable to your product.

### **Table of Contents**

1.	Introdu	ction	1
	1.1. Pur	pose	1
	1.1.1.	Governance	1
	1.2. Do	cument Orientation	1
	1.2.1.	Organization of the Manual	1
	1.2.2.	Assumptions	2
	1.2.3.	Coordination	2
	1.2.4.	Disclaimers	3
	1.2.4.	1. Documentation Disclaimer	3
	1.2.5.	Documentation Conventions	3
	1.2.6.	References and Resources	4
	1.3. Nat	ional Service Desk and Organizational Contacts	4
2.	System	Summary	5
	2.1. Sys	tem Configuration	5
	2.2. Dat	a Flows	6
	2.3. Use	er Access Levels	7
	2.4. Con	ntinuity of Operation	7
3.	Getting	Started	7
	3.1. Log	gging On	7
	-	tem Menu	
	3.2.1.	POLARIS Landing Page	8
	3.3. Cha	anging User ID and Password	8
	3.4. Exi	t System	8
	3.5. Cav	veats and Exceptions	9
	3.6. CR	ISP, VistA, or Other Software Patching Across Multiple Systems	9
4.	Using th	e Software	9
	4.1. Ger	neral Releases	9
	4.1.1.	Weekly Entries	.10
	4.1.2.	Entries that Exceed Two Months	.10
	4.1.3.	IOC Entries	10
	4.2. Fie	ld Ops Releases	10
	4.3. Add	ding a New POLARIS Release	11
	4.3.1.	Point of Contact Information	13
	4.3.2.	Release Information	15
	4.3.3.	Status Information	23
	4.3.4.	Release Documentation	25
	4.4. Cre	ating Calendar Items by Using Templates	
	4.4.1.	Creating a Template	.29

	4.4.2.	Deleting a Template	
	4.5. Edi	ting, Rescheduling, or Cancelling an Existing Calendar Item	
	4.5.1.	Editing an Existing Item	
	4.5.2.	Rescheduling an Existing Item	
	4.5.3.	Cancelling an Existing Item	
	4.6. Vie	ws and Reports	
	4.6.1.	All Calendars, Analysis, and Review/Approval Views	
	4.6.2.	Views by Predefined Range of Dates	
	4.6.3.	Accessibility View	
	4.6.4.	Creating Custom Reports Using Parameters	
	4.6.5.	View Metrics Reports	
	4.7. Sea	rch for a Release	
	4.7.1.	Search for a Release by Event ID	
	4.7.2.	Search by Change Order Number	
	4.7.3.	Search within a Defined SharePoint List View	
	4.8. Res	ources	46
	4.8.1.	Documents and Links	46
	4.8.2.	VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)	
5.	Trouble	shooting	
	5.1. Use	r Feedback	
	5.1.1.	Fields for User Input	
	5.1.2.	Fields for POLARIS Team Input	
	5.2. Spe	cial Instructions for Error Correction	
6.	Acronyr	ns and Abbreviations	55
7.	Appendi	ix	
		LARIS Glossary of Calendar Item Data	
		endar Approvals Process	
		LARIS Organization Roles and Responsibilities (Current and Future)	
		ial Operating Capability (IOC)	
		LARIS Workflows	
	11.5. 101		

# List of Figures

Figure 1: POLARIS Workflow Diagram	
Figure 2: POLARIS Landing Page	8
Figure 3: Create a New POLARIS Release	11
Figure 4: New Release Form	
Figure 5: New Field Ops Release Form	12
Figure 6: Required Fields	12
Figure 7: Event ID and Title	13
Figure 8: Browse Icon	13
Figure 9: Select People - Webpage Dialog box	14
Figure 10: Browse Results	
Figure 11: Required POC Fields	
Figure 12: Summary	
Figure 13: Description	16
Figure 14: Category	
Figure 15: System Name	
Figure 16: Application Name	
Figure 17: Version Number	
Figure 18: Release Start and End Date & Time	
Figure 19: Edit Release Start Date & Time	18
Figure 20: Prompt to Update Release End Date	
Figure 21: Edit Release End Date & Time	
Figure 22: Site(s)	
Figure 23: Affected Location(s) (for Field Ops Releases)	20
Figure 24: Target Environment	
Figure 25: EPS or VIP – EPS Options	
Figure 26: EPS or VIP – VIP Options	
Figure 27: Dependencies	
Figure 28: Planned Downtime	
Figure 29: Primary Deployment Organization	
Figure 30: Customer/User Community	
Figure 31: Installation Scope	22
Figure 32: Conference Bridge and Access Code	
Figure 33: Comments	23
Figure 34: Calendar Review Status	
Figure 35: Reason for Needs Revision	
Figure 36: Execution Status	
Figure 37: Non-Complete Reason	
Figure 38: CO Numbers	
Figure 39: ANR	
Figure 40: Release Notes	
Figure 41: Installation Instructions	
Figure 42: Back-out Plans	
Figure 43: Successful Readiness Review	
Figure 44: Attachments	
Figure 45: Attach File Browse Button	
Figure 46: Browse Results for Attachment and Open Button	
Figure 40. Browse Results for Attachment and Open Button	
Figure 48: Submit Button	
Figure 49: Cancel Button	
i iguie 77. Cancel Duttoli	49

Figure 50:	Save as POLARIS Template Button	29
Figure 51:	Do Not Use Save Button for Template Changes	29
Figure 52:	All Release Templates	30
Figure 53:	Example of Existing Template	31
Figure 54:	Delete a Template	31
Figure 55:	Edit Item Icon	32
Figure 56:	All Calendars, Analysis View, and Review/Approval View	33
	All Calendars View	
Figure 58:	Analysis View	34
Figure 59:	Predefined Range of Dates	35
	Link to Switch to Calendar View	
Figure 61:	Calendar View and Settings to Adjust Timeframe	36
	Change Scope of Calendar View	
	Accessibility View Home Page	
	Accessibility View - All Releases	
•	Specify Category	
÷	Specify Calendar Review Status	
÷	Specify Execution Status	
	Specify Begin Date	
Figure 69:	Specify End Date and Apply	40
•	POLARIS Triage Report	
	View Item from Triage Report	
	Postponed/Cancelled Release Report	
-	Search by ID Report	
Figure 74:	Search by ID Report Result – Additional Information	44
	Search by CO Number Report	
	Search a List View Using a Filter	
Figure 77:	List Navigation to Next or Previous 100 Items	46
Figure 78:	Documents & Links – Resource Documentation	47
	Documents & Links - Resource Links	
Figure 80:	VA Service Desk Manager	48
Figure 81:	Feedback Link	49
Figure 82:	User Feedback Form	49
Figure 83:	Required Fields	50
	Comments	
Figure 85:	Attach a File	51
Figure 86:	Attach File Browse Button	51
Figure 87:	Browse Results for Attachment and Open Button	51
Figure 88:	Attach File Button	52
Figure 89:	File Attached	52
Figure 90:	Submit or Close the Form	52
Figure 91:	Change Type	53
	Issue Status Drop Down List	
Figure 93:	Priority Drop Down List	53
	Due Date Calendar Icon	
Figure 95:	Assigned To	54

### List of Tables

# 1. Introduction

### 1.1. Purpose

The purpose of the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar (POLARIS) User Guide is to provide users with essential information to ensure full use of the release calendar. This manual includes a description of the system functions and capabilities, contingencies and step-by-step procedures for system access and use.

Per VAIQ 7669086, signed on January 19, 2016 by the Assistant Secretary for OI&T (paragraph 5):

**The POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar** shall begin a phased implementation across OI&T to become the single authoritative release calendar for all of OI&T. The POLARIS calendaring process and tool will be used to track software installations, hardware replacements, system upgrades, patch release and implementation, special works in progress, and other deployment events in the VA production environment....this Microsoft SharePoint-based application will serve as a central repository for production platform change information, release management coordination and deployment activity scheduling.

### 1.1.1. Governance

POLARIS is the single authoritative release calendar for all of OI&T. POLARIS allows users to monitor, document, and track the status of releases as they are added to the schedule. The site also provides the means for users to extract data from the calendar for their reporting purposes.

The goals of the OI&T POLARIS Release Calendar and related processes are to:

- Provide a centralized, single authoritative release calendar for all of VA;
- Enhance visibility into, and coordination of, releases across VA; and
- Reduce and eliminate redundancy in review, approval, and communication processes.

The Governance Board for POLARIS sets requirements for use of the POLARIS calendar.

## **1.2.** Document Orientation

### 1.2.1. Organization of the Manual

The following is a brief descriptive outline of the major sections within this guide. Please click on the hyperlink to navigate directly to that section.

- 1. <u>Introduction:</u> describes the purpose of this user guide, document orientation (i.e., assumptions, coordination, disclaimers, document conventions, references and resources), and National Service Desk (NSD) contacts.
- 2. <u>System Summary</u>: provides details on the system configuration; data flows; user access levels; and continuity of operations.
- 3. <u>Getting Started:</u> describes how the user accesses the site, the default view, how to exit the system, any caveats and exceptions, general patching; and how to report technical or content issues.
- 4. <u>Using the Software:</u> offers step-by-step instructions for using the features of the calendar, including adding a new calendar item; how to create a recurring item using a template and delete

an existing template; how to edit, reschedule, or cancel an item; how to view existing data from predefined views, create custom reports, and view metrics; how to search for a release; and links to additional resources and links.

- 5. <u>Troubleshooting</u>: provides special instructions for error correction, how to report technical or content issues, how to provide user feedback, and how to contact the POLARIS Calendar Agents for immediate assistance.
- 6. <u>Acronyms and Abbreviations:</u> a brief list of acronyms and abbreviations included in this guide.
- 7. <u>Appendix:</u> includes a glossary of the terms or metrics used to complete the new calendar item form, a description of the calendar approval process, and a matrix outlining the current and future roles and responsibilities of the calendar organization.

This guide was written for the users of POLARIS, who are responsible for the planning, development, and implementation of software releases, patches or upgrades, system administration, Information Technology (IT) security related updates, and other IT deployments.

The audience for the POLARIS User Guide includes project managers, implementation managers, release managers, management analysts, and the contractors supporting those projects. It may also include other representatives from NCA, OI&T [e.g., Product Development (PD), Product Support (PS), Service Delivery and Engineering (SDE), information technology centers] VBA, VHA, and VA executive leadership.

### 1.2.2. Assumptions

This guide was written with the following assumed experience/skills of the audience:

- User has a basic knowledge of the underlying requirements for release for his or her project;
- User understands the impact the release may have on other systems (e.g., dependencies, coordinating release during schedule maintenance to avoid service interruptions, resource constraints);
- User has an active Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) network account;
- User has basic knowledge of SharePoint (such as how to request access, levels of access, and navigation tools);
- User is using Microsoft SharePoint to view, record and store information related to their project;
- User has been provided with appropriate access to the POLARIS SharePoint site (e.g., contributor rights) and can access the site directly from the network on their Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) or via Citrix Access Gateway (CAG).

### 1.2.3. Coordination

The calendar items posted on POLARIS will be reviewed in various POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar Review meetings held via teleconference. Participants in the teleconference may include representatives from National Cemetery Administration (NCA), Office of Information and Technology (OI&T), Veteran Benefit Administration (VBA), Veteran Health Administration (VHA), National Security Operations Center (NSOC), and contractors. The facilitator for each meeting will lead the group in reviewing planned activities for a predetermined range of dates. These meetings will provide an appropriate forum for the

POLARIS User Guide 1.9 participants to address any need for coordination for releases, any security issues, identify additional resources that may be required (e.g., testers), and raise other concerns for the group's consideration. Review meetings will focus on calendar items that are relevant to a specific group to ensure all release activities are reviewed.

The project manager, authorized representative who created the entry on the calendar, or any other designated POCs for that release, is responsible for adding the calendar item, coordinating the schedule for the release with any other groups that may be affected by that release, attending the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar Review meeting to brief the participants on the status of the release, and keeping the calendar item up to date.

The POLARIS calendar team requests that release entries first appear when you have the first proposed deployment date; all entries should be entered a minimum of two to four weeks ahead of release date. Please also see <u>Appendix A.4: Initial Operating Capability (IOC)</u> regarding IOC entries. For VIP projects, EPMO PM creates the template before CD2 approval, and the operations counterpart submits it as an entry after CD2 approval. The dates and times for these entries may be changed up until the **Calendar Review Status** has been updated to **Review Successful** as a result of the briefing on the Calendar Review meeting.

A <u>schedule</u> of the POLARIS Review meetings and other POLARIS resources may be found under <u>Documents and Links</u> on the POLARIS SharePoint site.

### 1.2.4. Disclaimers

This software was developed at the Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) by employees of the Federal Government in the course of their official duties. Pursuant to title 17 Section 105 of the United States Code this software is not subject to copyright protection and is in the public domain. VA assumes no responsibility whatsoever for its use by other parties, and makes no guarantees, expressed or implied, about its quality, reliability, or any other characteristic. We would appreciate acknowledgement if the software is used. This software can be redistributed and/or modified freely if any derivative works bear some notice that they are derived from it, and any modified versions bear some notice that they have been modified.

### 1.2.4.1. Documentation Disclaimer

The appearance of external hyperlink references in this manual does not constitute endorsement by the Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) of this Web site or the information, products, or services contained therein. The VA does not exercise any editorial control over the information you may find at these locations. Such links are provided and are consistent with the stated purpose of the VA.

## 1.2.5. Documentation Conventions

This manual uses several methods to highlight different aspects of the material.

- Descriptive text is presented in a proportional font (as represented by this font). A proportional font is a font type in which the width of letters and symbols varies depending on the letter or symbol.
- Images of computer online displays (i.e., character-based screen captures/dialogs) are shown in a non-proportional font and enclosed within a box. Also included are Graphical

User Interface (GUI) Microsoft Windows images (i.e., dialogs or forms). A nonproportional font is a font whose letters and characters each occupy the same amount of horizontal space.

- This user guide was developed using the most recent template provided on the VA VIP SharePoint site, and uses pre-defined styles for all formatting (e.g., paragraph text, bullets, enumeration).
- Field name and user's responses to online prompts (e.g., manual entry, taps, clicks) appear in **boldface** type.
- Notes are used to call the user's attention to additional information relevant to the action described in that section, but that is not part of the step-by-step instructions.

### 1.2.6. References and Resources

The references listed in Table 1 provide information in support of release management activities for the POLARIS SharePoint site. Links to these references appear on POLARIS, are located within the VA firewall, and are not accessible to users outside the VA network. Please work with the project's VA Program Manager, Implementation Manager, or other authorized point of contact (POC) to complete any activities required via these sources in support of the release.

Source	Purpose
VA- National Service Desk (NSD) Automated Notification Reporting list (ANR)	The ANR list is provided so users may validate the ANR number associated with the release activity. A link to this list appears in the New Item Form, as well as on the right side of the POLARIS Landing Page and left side of all other pages on the site.
CA Service Desk Manager (SDM)	CA SDM offers access to information in incidents, requests and change orders (COs). This reference is provided so users may validate the CO number(s) associated with the release activity. A link to this list appears in the New Item Form, as well as on the right side of the POLARIS Landing Page and left side of all other pages on the site.
Office of Business Process Integration's (OBPI's) VBA Testing Request Tracker (TRT)	OBPI's Testing Request Tracker is an online tool to request testers for VBA's business lines. A link to this list appears on the right side of the POLARIS Landing Page and left side of all other pages on the site.
OBPI's Weekend Manager Schedule	OBPI's Weekend Manager Schedule provides the name and contact information for the current OBPI Weekend Manager. A link to this list appears on the right side of the Landing Page and left side of all other pages on the site.

Table 1: List of References

# **1.3.** National Service Desk and Organizational Contacts

Users may contact the National Service Desk via 1-855-673-4357 or National Service Desk - Austin (<u>cdco-nsd@va.gov</u>) to report incidents and break fixes.

Users may reach out to the POLARIS Calendar Agents with process questions or general use of the tool by sending a request to the VA IT POLARIS Calendar Agents mail group

(VAITPOLARISCalendarAgents@va.gov). Please identify the entry by ID and title, describe the issue or question, and provide a screenshot, if applicable.

Users may also provide feedback for future enhancements or process suggestions via the User Feedback Form, as described in <u>Section 5.1 User Feedback</u>.

# 2. System Summary

The POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar items are presented to a distinct audience comprised of representatives from NCA, OI&T, VBA, VHA, NSOC, and contractors.

- Major functions performed by the system POLARIS allows users to monitor, document, and track the status of releases as they are added to the schedule. The site also provides the means for users to extract data from the calendar for their reporting purposes. Links to additional resources, such as the Service Desk Manager (SDM) and Automated Notification Reports (ANR) are provided. Office of Business Process Integration's (OBPI's) VBA Testing Request Tracker (TRT) allows project managers to request and coordinate testing resources from the OBPI in advance of the deployment. The OBPI Weekend Manager Schedule provides POC information for those individuals assigned for upcoming weekends. OBPI's TRT and Weekend Manager Schedule are resources employed by VBA business lines, and therefore are used only for VBA releases.
- Description of the architecture of the system in non-technical terms, (e.g., client/server, Web-based) The system architecture is web based and consists of a Microsoft SharePoint 2010 site to manage and display the calendar and export data for reporting purposes.
- User access mode The POLARIS SharePoint site is located on the VA network within the firewall. Data is added or updated in the calendar via a link on the POLARIS SharePoint site. The link is to a GUI with defined text fields for input by authorized users.
- **Responsible organization** POLARIS is managed and maintained by Enterprise Operations (EO).
- System name or title POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar (POLARIS)
- **System environment factors** POLARIS is designed to work with standard VA furnished computing equipment.

# 2.1. System Configuration

POLARIS is a SharePoint site used to monitor, document, and track the status of planned software installations, hardware replacements, system upgrades, patch release and implementation, special works in progress, and many other deployment issues. Data captured in the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar is stored on a VA SharePoint farm. Data flow for POLARIS is provided in <u>Section 2.2: Data Flows</u> below.

# 2.2. Data Flows

The POLARIS Workflow Diagram provides context for when a new calendar item should be created, reviewed, briefed, and updated throughout the development and implementation cycle (see Figure 1). It also depicts the timing for when Operational Readiness is confirmed, a process that is dependent on the Veterans Focused Integration Process (VIP) Workflow for Project development and release.





Weekly interactive reviews are conducted to collectively identify project risks and potential outages, look for schedule conflicts between current and planned installation activities, and systematically interview each activity representative. These reviews will bring varied release activities to the immediate attention of all levels of management and key technical personnel.

**NOTE:** Detailed workflows for POLARIS entries for Data Center or Single Site Releases and for POLARIS Entries for Multi-site Releases or Multi-Site Infrastructure Changes are provided in <u>Appendix A-5: POLARIS Workflows</u>

# 2.3. User Access Levels

All users with valid VA network IDs/accounts have access that allows them to add calendar items, edit them, and review them.

# 2.4. Continuity of Operation

The description of the Continuity of Operation will be updated and included in a future iteration of the POLARIS User Guide.

# 3. Getting Started

POLARIS allows users to monitor, document, and track the status of planned software installations, hardware replacements, system upgrades, patch release and implementation, special works in progress, and many other deployment issues. It serves as a central repository for change information, release management coordination and deployment activity scheduling.

This full featured SharePoint site is a decision-making platform that is intended to be annotated and updated on a real-time basis. It inherently offers a working and easily accessible User platform, security safeguards and robust version/configuration management.

The primary purpose of POLARIS is to ensure successful release activities within the production environment. A successful release is defined as a production activity that:

- Delivers the desired functionality within the scheduled timeframe.
- Does not introduce a system defect.
- Does not adversely impact other system functionality, and
- Does not incur any unscheduled system downtime or unavailability

The POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar supports VA's Change Management and Risk Management activities.

Review of scheduled release activities are conducted in order to:

- Identify and resolve potential conflicts that could negatively impact the release activity or other components of the production system,
- Verify that proper notification of the release activity is "advertised" to IT and Business Line representatives
- Coordinate resources and schedules as needed for all release and validation activities as needed, and
- Ensure the installation plans, back-out plans, and criteria are complete and understood by the implementing organization.

# 3.1. Logging On

All users with valid VA network accounts have access to the POLARIS SharePoint site at VA offices via direct network access on their GFE, or through CAG or Virtual Private Network (VPN) access for remote users.

# 3.2. System Menu

The POLARIS' system menu is provided via Microsoft SharePoint. Users may access alternative calendar views, and documentation via the Quick Launch bar on the left side of the landing page, and access individual calendar items by clicking on that item within the calendar.

# 3.2.1. POLARIS Landing Page

The POLARIS landing page default view includes the releases for the **Next 14 Days** in a SharePoint list, as well as links to the online form to add a new POLARIS release, predefined views of releases, an option to create a custom report, a link to view metrics reports, and links to additional resources (see Figure 2). See <u>Section 4.5</u>: <u>Views and Reports</u> for more information on how to access additional views or create custom reports.

Enterprise Release Calendar									
ELEASES P			🛞 PC	DLARIS	ENTERPRIS	E RELEASE CA	LENDAR		
Create a New POLARIS Release	Next 14	Days My Releases Today's R	teleases Monthly Rele	ases Next 7 Days Next 30	Days Next 60 Day	/\$			
Create a New POLARIS	Next 14	Days							
Field Ops Release		Title	Release Child Calendar	Summary	Release Start	Release End	Release Category	Site(s)	Calendar Review Statu
Release Templates All Calendars	70 29	FileMan Patch DI*22.2*2 - National Release	VHA	FileMan Patch DI*22.2*2 EXTENSIBLE DATA TYPES AND META DD EHNANC EMENTS	2/21/2017 12:00 AM	2/26/2017 12:00 AM	VHA Business Program	Field Ops Locations	Pending Review
Ana lysis View	7197	NSOC Gateway North Windows Systems VSE 8.8 Patch 8	IT Infrastructure	NSOC Gate way North Windows	2/21/2017 1:00 AM	2/21/2017 5:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
Review / Approval View		Deployment Maintenance		Systems VSE 8.8 Patch 8 Deployment Maintenance					
Reports	7199	NSOC Gateway South Linux Systems Maintenance	IT Infrastructure	NSOC Gateway South Linux Systems Maintenance	2/21/2017 1:00 AM	2/21/2017 5:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
Metrics	7203	NSOC Gateway South SIEM Systems Maintenance	IT Infrastructure	NSOC Gateway South SIEM Systems Maintenance	2/21/2017 1:00 AM	2/21/2017 5:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
esources 🛢	7219	NSOC Gateway Operations - CCB 32899 - ASR 9001 5.2.4 Service Pack 5 Upgrade	IT Infrastructure	GWE CCB 32899 - ASR 9001 5.2.4 Service Pack 5 Upgrade	2/21/2017 1:00 AM	2/21/2017 7:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
Search for a Release	7481	Creation of additional vNics for Gateway South Cisco UCS/VMware Converged	IT Infrastructure	Creation of additional vNics for Gateway South Cisco UCS/VMware Converged	2/21/2017 1:00 AM	2/21/2017 4:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
Documents & Links	70.98	Infrastructure SMC solution being	IT Infrastructure	Infrastructure Repurpose GWN / GWS SMC	2/21/2017 8:00 AM	2/24/2017 4-00 PM	IT Infrastructure	NSOC	Review Successful
VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)		decommisioned In GWN and GWS for repurposed for ISE 2		ASAs to ISE 2 and GFE mobile.	2,22,2017 0.00 AH	2, 2, 2, 2017 4, 00 FM	Program		
Site Changelog	7479	Installation of ePO Hotfix 1179774	IT Security	Installation of ePO Hotfix 1179774 on the ePO servers in the EAV solution	2/21/2017 8:00 AM	2/24/2017 11:00 PM	IT Security Program	Field Ops Locations	Review Successful
Feedback?	7394	Change the queue depth of the hbas from the default to 8 for EO-	IT Infrastructure	Change the queue depth of the hbas from the default to 8 for EO	2/21/2017 9:00 AM	2/21/2017 5:30 PM	IT Infrastructure Program	AITC	Review Successful

#### Figure 2: POLARIS Landing Page

**NOTE:** Users may click on the My Releases tab to the right of the Next 14 Days tab to navigate to that user's list of releases.

# 3.3. Changing User ID and Password

All users with valid VA network accounts have access to the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar SharePoint site. A password is not required to access the calendar.

# 3.4. Exit System

Users may exit the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar SharePoint site by closing the window in the browser, or by clicking on the user's **name** in the upper right-hand corner and clicking **Sign Out**.

# 3.5. Caveats and Exceptions

Users are advised to enter data for all required fields. Users may go back to add additional content to other fields at any time. Some data elements are mandatory, and the system will prompt the user to complete those required fields before allowing a submission.

Users should also note that once an item has been discussed on the POLARIS Review call and the **Calendar Review Status** has been updated to **Review Successful** or **Needs Revision**, the fields for **Release Start Date, Release End Dates,** and the **Execution Status** are locked for editing. If the date and time changes, the user must cancel that item and resubmit the release as a new item. The user may create a template from the existing entry, and then resubmit it as an entry with the new date and time. Users are advised to contact the POLARIS Calendar Agents for further assistance (VAITPOLARISCalendarAgents@va.gov).

If an entire entry is in error, or is an unintentional duplicate item, the user is advised to change the status to cancelled and provide the reason for the cancellation (see <u>Section 4.4: Editing</u>, <u>Rescheduling</u>, or <u>Cancelling an Existing Item</u>).

# 3.6. CRISP, VistA, or Other Software Patching Across Multiple Systems

The user may create a single POLARIS entry when a CRISP, VistA, or other software patch is installed across many servers or applications as part of a large master Change Order (CO); however, this is allowed only if the installation will occur within a targeted and distinct time period (typically within several hours on a specific date). The user will be required to provide a separate POLARIS entry for each targeted installation when this type of action spans a broad time range (for example, a 5-to-30-day window to install a patch).

For WinTel CRISP Patching, Application Configuration Items (CIs) should be listed on the master patch CO for any patching that is only documented via the master patch CO. If this is not done, then separate COs and POLARIS entries must be generated. Patch and hold, manual patching, or any deviation from the master CO schedule, will require separate child COs and POLARIS entries.

# 4. Using the Software

The user selects the appropriate form for the release from the links provided on the POLARIS landing page.

# 4.1. General Releases

For a general POLARIS release, the user should click on the **Create a New POLARIS Release** link to ensure that he or she is using the latest version. The user should complete the form in detail for each unique release. If the release is for a recurring activity, then the user may save the entry as a template to reuse. See <u>Section 4.4: Creating Calendar Items by Using Templates</u> for more details.

### 4.1.1. Weekly Entries

Any entry that exceeds a week in duration must have an entry for each week's activity. These weekly entries may be facilitated by using a template.

### 4.1.2. Entries that Exceed Two Months

Any entry that exceeds two months in duration (e.g., enterprise infrastructure changes) must have an entry for each month's activity. These monthly entries may be facilitated by using a template.

### 4.1.3. IOC Entries

Initial Operating Capability (IOC) Production testing activity is considered production activity. Each POLARIS IOC entry has a maximum expected duration of three months. If the duration of the IOC exceeds three months, the user is required to create additional entries for each three month increment. Sites may start and complete IOC testing at different times. Therefore, the user is required to create one entry per site for IOC using the Field Ops form. The entries should include a reference to IOC in the title. Users should update the **Execution Status** when testing is completed at the site to **Completed Successfully** Please see Appendix A4: Initial Operating Capability (IOC) for additional information.

**NOTE:** IOC uses the term "sites" to describe the locations where testing will occur; however, in the POLARIS Field Ops form, users will select locations from a drop down menu in a field entitled Affected Locations.

# 4.2. Field Ops Releases

When a specific targeted release action is repetitive across multiple sites, then the POLARIS Field Operations entry form is required. If multiple weeks are required to complete all stations, then multiple forms are required; one per week. A template must be used to create the initial release entry, and this template should be used for each weekly entry. The user should click on the **Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release** link to ensure that he or she is using latest version. The form should detail the entire release.

The Field Ops user would then open the template to submit it as an actual entry for each oneweek timeframe. If the template has been completed in detail by the EPMO representative, then the Field Ops user will only need to edit three areas:

- 1. Ensure the POCs are correct,
- 2. Specify the week time span, and
- 3. Select the sites that will be deployed that week.

The Field Ops user then **submits** it as a POLARIS entry.

NOTE: The original template is still available to create the next entry for the next week.

Once each defined one-week deployment is complete, the Field Ops user will need to update any site changes and complete the **Execution Status** for that entry.

# 4.3. Adding a New POLARIS Release

The POLARIS calendar team requests that release entries first appear when you have the first proposed deployment date; all entries should be entered a minimum of two to four weeks ahead of release date. Any CO that has a documented scheduled start date or Major Implementation Date (MID) must have an active POLARIS entry. For VIP projects, EPMO PM creates the template before CD2 approval, and the operations counterpart submits it as an entry after CD2 approval. Users may change the date and time as needed up until the release activity has been briefed and the **Calendar Review Status** has been changed to **Review Successful** or **Needs Revision**.

A detailed list of activities that require a POLARIS entry, along with those that are excluded, may be found in the document entitled <u>POLARIS Entries Required</u>.

For general release activities, users should click on the **Create a New POLARIS Release** link on the left side of the screen (see Figure 3).

#### Enterprise Release Calendar + POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar POLARIS RELEASES P ENTERPRISE RELEASE CALENDAR Create a New POLARIS Release Next 14 Days My Releases Today's Releases Monthly Releases Next 7 Days Next 30 Days Next 60 Days Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release Next 14 Days ID Title Release Child Calendar Summary Release Start Release End Site(s) Calendar Review Status Release Category Pelega Templates FileMan Patch DI\*22.2\*2 -- 2/21/2017 12:00 AM 2/26/2017 12:00 AM VHA Business EXTENSIBLE DATA TYPES AND META DD EHNANCEMENTS 7029 FileMan Patch DI\*22.2\*2 -National Release VHA Field Ops Pending Review Locations All Calendars NSOC Gateway North Windows 7197 NSOC Gateway North Windows Systems VSE 8.8 Patch 8 IT Infrastructure NSOC Review Successful

If the user clicks on the **Create a New POLARIS Release**, then the **New Release** form will appear, as shown in Figure 4.

S PO	LARIS	ENTERPRIS	E RELEASE CALENDAR	
Event ID:			Title:	*
	Point of Contact	Information		
Project Manager POC:	Implementation Manager POC:		Post-Validation Tester POC:	
Name:	Name:	&∕ 11	Name:	· 🔟
Phone number:	Phone number:		Phone number:	
Phone number Ext. (alternate):	Phone number (alternate):	Ext.	Phone number Ext. (alternate):	
Ex. (###) ###-#### Email: *	Ex. (###) ###-#### Email:		Ex. (###) ###-#### Email:	

Figure 4: New Release Form

Figure 3: Create a New POLARIS Release

If the user clicks on the **Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release**, then the **New Field Ops Release** form will appear, as shown in Figure 5.

S PC	LARIS	ENTERPRISE	RELEASE CALENDAR		
	Field Operations	Release			
Event ID:	Title:				
Point of Contact Information					
Project Manager POC:	Implementation Mar	nager POC:	Post-Validation Tester POC:		
Name:	Name:	8 <sub>1</sub> 🚯	Name:		
Phone number:	Phone number:	7	Phone number:		

Figure 5: New Field Ops Release Form

The fields are very similar, with the exception that **New Field Ops Releases** form includes a field that allows users to identify multiple **Field Offices** (**locations**) affected by that release activity instead of the **Site(s)** field that appears in the **New POLARIS Release** form (see instructions and Figure 24: Affected Location(s) for more information).

Users are advised to complete the required fields in the **New Item** form first, and may go back to add additional content at a later time. Required fields for the **New Item** form are indicated by either a red asterisk that appears in the upper right corner of the field, or by a red dotted outline around the field (see Figure 6).

Figure 6: Required Fields	Figure	6:	Required	Fields
---------------------------	--------	----	----------	--------

Release Information	
Summary	*
Description	
Category	Please select

The information in the form is broken out into several subsections, including: **Points of Contact**, **Release Information**, **Status Information**, and **Release Documentation**.

At the top of the form, the user is required to provide the **Title** of the release. The **Event Identification (Event ID)** number will be automatically generated once the entry is submitted (see Figure 7).

Figure 7: Event ID and Title



### 4.3.1. Point of Contact Information

The user is required to complete the **Name, Phone Number,** and **Email** for the **Project Manager POC** at initial entry. The Project Manager is responsible for the development and management of the initiative.

The user may add the **Implementation Manager POC** and **Post-Validation Tester POC** once they are identified; however, it is recommended that those fields be completed as soon as possible and before the item is discussed during the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar Review meeting. The Implementation Manager is responsible for the hands-on installation of the release. This field is optional, and if left blank, the assumption is the POC for the Project Manager and POC for the Implementation Manager are the same individual.

Users may search for the name and contact information using the browse button, as shown in Figure 8.

Point of Contact Information			
Project Manager POC:	Implementation Manager POC:	Post-Validation Tester POC:	
Name:	Name:	Name:	
Phone number.	Phone number:	Phone number:	
Phone number Ext. (alternate):	Phone number Ext. (alternate):	Phone number Ext. (alternate):	
Ex. (###) ###-####	Ex. (###) #######	Ex. (*****) *****	
Email:	Email:	Email:	

Figure 8: Browse Icon

Once the user clicks on the **browse** button, the **Select People – Webpage Dialog** box will open. The user may type in the **last name** of the POC and click on the **magnifying glass icon** on the right to search in Active Directory (AD) and the results will appear in the dialog box under **Display Name** (see Figure 9).

#### Figure 9: Select People - Webpage Dialog box

	Select People Webpage Dialog       Find Pindels ki	
Project Manag Name: Phone number: TBD Phone number (alternate): Ex. (###) ########	Display Name Title Department E-Mail Mobile Number Account Name Type into the search box above then press "Enter" to start your search.	tion Tester POC:
Email: Carolyn.Martin@va.gov Description	OK Cancel	

The user should select the correct **name** for the POC and click **OK** (see Figure 10).

	Select People Webp	age Dialog	×	NDAR
	Find Pindels ki		٩	
	Display Name Pindelski, Edward, VBAHINES	Title Chief, Benefits Product Support Division	Department E-N VetsNet Division edu	
Project Manag				tion Tester POC:
Name:				8,12
Phone number:				
Phone number (alternate):				Ext.
Ex. (###) ######## Email:				
Carolyn.Martin@va.gov				
	<		>	
Description		ОК	Cancel	*

#### Figure 10: Browse Results

POLARIS User Guide 1.9 The POC's **Name** will automatically be populated. The user must manually enter the **Phone Number** and **Email** (see Figure 11). The user may also manually enter an **alternate phone number**, which is especially important for releases that will occur outside standard business hours or during weekends or holidays.

**NOTE:** If the user or POC does not wish to post a personal number for a mobile device, he or she may forward the office number to that alternate phone number and confirm that with the Calendar Agent during the briefing for that release on the POLARIS Calendar Review meeting.

Figure 11: Required POC Fields

Point of Contact Information			
Project Manager POC:	Implementation Manager POC:	Post-Validation Tester POC:	
Name: Pindelski, Edward, VBAHINES : & 1	Name:	Name:	
Phone number:	Phone number:	Phone number:	
Phone number Ext. (alternate):	Phone number Ext. (alternate):	Phone number Ext. (alternate):	
Ex. (###) ########	Ex. (###) ###-####	Ex. (###) ### ####	
Email: edward.pindelski@va.gov	Email:	Email:	

**NOTE:** *Phone number (alternate)* and *Ext.* may be manually entered.

### 4.3.2. Release Information

In this section of the form, the user will be asked to provide specific details for the release, the schedule, and how it may impact other systems.

The user is required to add a summary of the release in the **Summary** field (see Figure 12). The summary should be brief, but with enough information so that when the Calendar Agent reads it to the participants on the POLARIS Review call, the Project Manager POC, Implementation Manager POC, Post-Validation Tester POC, and other users will recognize it. It should also be distinct from other calendar entries to avoid confusion.

#### Figure 12: Summary

Release Information	
Summary	*
Description	*

The user should add a **Description** in this freeform field that provides enough detail that other users may understand what is being installed (see Figure 13). Please note that the contents of the Description field will not appear onscreen during the POLARIS Review call, unless the Calendar Agent leading the meeting opens the item.

#### Figure 13: Description

Release Information		
Summary	*	
Description		
	*	

The user is required to select a **Category** for this release from the drop down menu (see Figure 14). Descriptions of these categories are provided under the field for quick reference.

#### Figure 14: Category



The user will be required to provide a **System Name** from the **drop down menu**. If the user selects "other," he or she will need to provide the name in the free form field to the right of the field (see Figure 15). In this context, the **System Name** refers to the name of the system, platform, or hardware. It should reflect the highest system level, the top program, or the base platform (e.g., AITC Infrastructure, NSOC, Mainframe).

#### Figure 15: System Name

System Name		
	-[N/A]	
Application Name	[Other]	
Applearon Name	AITC Infrastructure	
Version Number	BDN	
	BPE	
	CRM	
	DAS	
Release Start Date & Time	Desktop	
(EST)	eBenefits	
	Education	
Release End Date & Time	HIPS	
(EST)		
	HITC Infrastructure	
Site(s)	HRAPROD	
	LGY	^
	Mainframe	
	MRC	
	Network	
	NSOC	
	PITC Infrastructure	
	QITC Infrastructure	
	RBPS	
	SEP	
	VBAPPRD	
	VBAPROD	
	VBMS	
	VETSNET	
	Virtual VA	
	VISTA	
	VRM	
	Region 3	
		•
	Region 4	

The user will be required to provide an **Application Name** from the drop down menu (see Figure 16). The user may need to use the scroll bar for the list (not the one for the form), as indicated by the red arrow below, in order to see other items on the list. If the user selects **Other**, he or she will need to **provide the name** in the free form field to the right of the field for the Application Name selected.

#### **NOTE:** The Application Name drop down list is based on the <u>VA System Inventory (VASI)</u>.

#### Figure 16: Application Name

Application Name		
Version Number	[N/A] (N/A) [Other] (Other) 4Cast Financial Planning (4Cast) Abbott Point of Care Portal (None) Absent Sick in Hospital - Bed Hold (ASIH)	
Release Start Date & Time (EST)	Access Manager (AM) Accu-Chek 360 (None)	
Release End Date & Time (EST)	Active Directory (AD) Activity Based Budgeting System (ABB) Addiction Severity Index (ASI)	
Site(s)	Administrative Data Repository (ADR) Airborne Hazard Open Burn Pit Registry (AHOBPR) AITC Physical Security (SEC) Amputee Registry (AR) Anesthesia Record Keeper (ARK) ANSOS One-Staff (None) Application Security Monitoring & Scanning (ASM) Architect/Engineer Rating System (AERATES) ASPIRE (ASPIRE) Associated Health Allocation (AHDB) Atrium Dependency Development Mapping (ADDM) Audiocare (None)	

The user may provide a Version Number in this free-form text field (see Figure 17).

#### Figure 17: Version Number

Application Name	
Version Number	
	Applicable release version number, or 'NA'
Release Start Date & Time (EST)	12/7/2015 4:25 PM
Release End Date & Time (EST)	12/7/2015 III 6:25 PM

The user will be required to provide the **Release Start Date & Time** and **Release End Date & Time**. The default entry for the **Release Start Date & Time** is the current date and time, and the entry for the **Release End Date & Time** is entered manually (see Figure 18).

Figure 18: Release Start and End Date & Time

Release Start Date & Timle (EST)	2/1/2015 2:27 PM
Release End Date & Time (EST)	2/1/2015 3:27 PM

The user may edit the **Release Start Date & Time** by clicking on the calendar icon, may change the month by clicking on the left or right arrows on the **Month, Year** heading in the pop-up calendar image, and clicking on the new date (see Figure 19). The user may edit the start time in the text field to the right of the calendar icon. Please note that all times should be recorded in Eastern Standard Time (EST).

Figure 19: Edit Release Start Date & Time

Release Start Date & Time (EST)	12/23/2015 12:23 PM ▲ December, 2015 ▲
Release End Date & Time (EST)	S M T W T F S 29 30 1 2 3 4 5
Site(s)	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 <b>*</b> 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
	20 21 22 <u>23</u> 24 25 26
	27 28 29 30 31 1 2 Today is Tuesday, December 22, 2015

Once the user provides a new **Release Start Date & Time**, he or she will be prompted to provide a **Release End Date & Time**. As the user rolls over that field, a prompt will appear that states, "Please enter a release end date on or after the chosen release start date." The fields for **Release End Date & Time** have a red-dotted outline, as well (see Figure 20).

#### Figure 20: Prompt to Update Release End Date



The user may edit the **Release End Date & Time** by clicking on the calendar icon, may change the month by clicking on the left or right arrows on the **Month, Year** heading in the pop-up

calendar image, and clicking on the new date, as shown in Figure 21. The user may edit the end time in the text field to the right of the calendar icon.

Figure 21: Edit Release End Date & Time

Release Start Date & Time (EST)	12/23/2015 12:23 PM
Release End Date & Time (EST)	12/24/2015 Ⅲ 1:23 PM
Site(s)	S       M       T       W       T       F       S         29       30       1       2       3       4       5         6       7       8       9       10       11       12         13       14       15       16       17       18       19         20       21       22       23       24       25       26         27       28       29       30       31       1       2         Today is Tuesday, December 22, 2015       2015       24       25       26

For **General Releases**, the user will be required to indicate which **Site**(s) will have the release installed (see Figure 22). The user may need to use the scroll bar for the list (not the one for the form), as indicated by the red arrow below, in order to see other items on the list. Please check all sites that are applicable.

#### Figure 22: Site(s)

Site(s)	AITC *	
		`
	Terremark	
	Regional Office	
	VACO	

For **Field Ops Releases**, the user will be required to indicate the **Affected Location(s)** (see Figure 23). The user may select all locations within a region (e.g., **All Region 1**), or identify individual locations by clicking on the checkbox to the left of the associated region or location. The user may need to use the scroll bar for the list (not the one for the form), as indicated by the red arrow below, in order to see other items on the list. Please check all locations that are applicable.

Figure 23: Affected Location(s) (for Field Ops Releases)

Release End Date & Time (EST)		
Affected Location(s)	All Region 1 - N/A - N/A - All Region 1 Facilities	
	🗌 🗆 All Region 2 - N/A - N/A - All Region 2 Facilities	
	🗌 All Region 3 - N/A - N/A - All Region 3 Facilities	
	All Region 4 - N/A - N/A - All Region 4 Facilities	
	All Region 5 - N/A - N/A - All Region 5 Facilities	
	☐ All Region 6 - N/A - N/A - All Region 6 Facilities	
	Region 1 - VISN 18 - 501 - Albuquerque, NM (501) VHA	
	Region 1 - VISN 18 - 504 - Amarillo, TX (504) VHA	
	Region 1 - VISN 18 - 519 - Big Spring, TX (519) VHA	
	Region 1 - VISN 18 - 644 - Phoenix, AZ (644) VHA	
	Region 1 - VISN 18 - 644 - VISN 18 - Network	
	Region 1 - VISN 18 - 649 - Prescott, AZ (649) VHA	
	Region 1 - VISN 18 - 678 - Tucson, AZ (678) VHA	
	🗌 Region 1 - VISN 18 - 756 - EI Paso, TX (756) VHA 🗸 🗸	
	Region 1 - VISN 19 - 436 - Montana HCS (436) VHA	
	X	

The user is required to identify the **Target Environment** via the drop down menu, as shown in Figure 24.

#### Figure 24: Target Environment

Target Environment	Production	
EPS or VIP?	PreProd Performance	VIP?
	Dark Domain	No V
	Certification Integration	
	ProdTest	
Dependencies	IOC - Production	*

The user will be asked to identify if the release falls under EPS by selecting **Yes** or **No** via the drop down list, as shown in Figure 25. If **Yes**, the user is asked to select **Other** or **N/A** from the drop down list in the **Number** field and may provide a number or other reference in the **Other** free-form text field. This number should reflect the unique identifier for the product or project.

#### Figure 25: EPS or VIP – EPS Options

EPS or VIP?	EPS? Yes 🔽 🛑	VIP? No
	Number: Please select N/A Other: Other	
Dependencies		

The user will be asked to identify if the release falls under **VIP** by selecting **Yes** or **No** via the drop down list, as shown in Figure 26. If **Yes**, the user will be asked to confirm **CD2** Approved by selecting **Yes** or **No** via the drop down list.

#### Figure 26: EPS or VIP – VIP Options

EPS or VIP?	EPS? No	
		CD2 Approved? Please s elect Yes
Dependencies		No

**NOTE:** CD2 Approval is only required for **Production** and **IOC- Production** entries, but may not be required for other IOC related entries.

The user is required to include any **Dependencies** in a free-form text field or state that "there are no dependencies." The form includes a note that describes dependencies as "any applications that could be impacted by this activity, including interfacing systems/subsystems" (see Figure 27).

#### Figure 27: Dependencies



The user is required to provide any **Planned Downtime** or note **N/A** in the free-form text field (see Figure 28).

#### Figure 28: Planned Downtime

Planned Downtime	*	
	If no downtime, please enter 'N/A'	

The user is required to select a **Primary Deployment Organization** from the drop down menu, as shown in Figure 29. (This is the organizational unit responsible for the release/deployment/activity.) If **Other** is selected, please provide the name of the **Primary Deployment Organization** in the free-form text field to the right.

#### Figure 29: Primary Deployment Organization

Primary Deployment		<b></b>
Organization		e/deployment/activity.
Customer / User Community	Enterprise Operations ESE Field Operations ISO NSOC Architecture NSOC Backend Systems NSOC BPE Ops NSOC Gateway Ops NSOC Infrastructure NSOC Portal Services NSOC Transition NSOC WAN Ops Product Development Region 5	

The user is required to select the **Customer/User Community** by **checking the box** to the left of the group's name. If **Other** is selected, please **provide the name** of the group in the text field (see Figure 30).

#### Figure 30: Customer/User Community

Customer / User	
	□VBA *
Community	□ VHA
	□ VR&E
	External Partners/Agencies
	Veteran-Facing Community
	Other
	Other:

The user is required to select the **Installation Scope** from the drop down list. If **Other** is selected, please **provide** a **description of the Installation Scope** in the text field (see Figure 31).

#### Figure 31: Installation Scope

Installation Scope	Please select Component of System Implementation Office Co-ordinated Install Field Office Install Stand-alone installation	s to be coordinated with another release activity? (ex. "SIO
Conference Bridge	Dependent upon another installation item N/A Other Phone/Bridge line for coordinated install activity.	

The user must provide details for a phone/conference bridge connection for coordinating an install activity in the **Conference Bridge** free-form text field (see Figure 32).

Figure 32: Conference Bridge and Access Code

	Access Code
Phone/Bridge line for	coordinated install activity.

The user may add **Comments** in the free-form text field, as shown in Figure 33. Please include information that is relevant to the release/installation that may not have been provided in other fields.

#### Figure 33: Comments



### 4.3.3. Status Information

The drop down list for the **Calendar Review Status** includes: **Pending Review, Review Successful, Needs Revision, Postponed**, or **Cancelled** (see Figure 34). The default entry for all new items is Pending Review. The Calendar Agent will update the status to **Review Successful** or **Needs Revision**, based on the results from the discussion on the Calendar Review meeting. If the status is changed to **Review Successful** or **Needs Revision**, then the release components are frozen. The user or Calendar Agent may update the status to **Postponed** or **Cancelled**, but the user must resubmit the release as a new item to reschedule it.

The Calendar Agent will update the **Calendar Review Status** to **Review Successful** if the following criteria have been met:

- Representative for the release was present on the POLARIS Review call to provide a status update;
- Deployment Schedule (date/time) has been reviewed and no conflict is apparent;
- Deployment Resources are identified and available for executing the release/activity;
- Installation Plan(s) created, available, and understood; and
- Back-out Plan(s) created, available, and understood.

The user may attach the Installation Plan(s), Back-out Plan(s), and other documentation that is relevant to the release/activity (see <u>Section 4.3.4: Release Documentation</u> for further instructions).

### Figure 34: Calendar Review Status

	formation
	4
Review Successful, pending CD2 approval	
Needs Revision	
Postponed	
Cancelled	
	Please select Pending Review Review Successful Review Successful, pending CD2 approval Needs Revision Postponed

If additional information is identified as missing in the entry or was not represented during POLARIS Calendar Review Briefing, the record will be marked as **Needs Revision**. The **Release Start Date**, the **Release End Date**, and the **Execution Status** fields will be locked for editing. The reason for this will be marked in the POLARIS entry (see Figure 35), and the Project Manager POC, the Implementation Manager POC, and the user who created the entry will receive an email notification explaining what revision is needed.

**NOTE:** To update the date and time of a release that has a **Calendar Review Status** of **Needs Revision**, the user must cancel that entry and resubmit it under the new date and time. The user is advised to create a template from the existing entry before cancelling it, and base the new entry off of the new template. Please see <u>Section 4.4.1: Creating a Template</u> and <u>Section 4.5.3: Cancelling an Existing Item</u> for further instructions.

#### Figure 35: Reason for Needs Revision

Comments	Please select No representation at Polaris review meeting Missing ANR with documented outage	rmation
Calendar Review Status	Missing Install and/or backout instructions Missing CO or incorrect reference (if applicable) Missing or incomplete POC information Dependencies inaccurate or missing Other Other:	

**NOTE:** If the Calendar Agent sets the **Calendar Review** to **Needs Revision** and does not make a selection from the secondary drop down list or does not add content in the text field for **Other**, they will receive a validation error that states: "Please enter the cause for the revision of this release."

After the scheduled installation date, the user must provide an **Execution Status** from the drop down list (see Figure 36). Options include: **Completed Successfully, In Progress, Partially Released, Backed Out, Postponed,** or **Cancelled.** 

#### **Figure 36: Execution Status**

Status Information			
Calendar Review Status	Review Successful		
Execution Status	N/A Completed Successfully In Progress Partially Released		
Non-Completed Reason	Backed Out Postponed Cancelled		

**NOTE:** If the **Calendar Review Status** is **Pending**, the user may only update the **Execution Status** to **Cancelled** or **Postponed**. If the **Calendar Review Status** is **Needs Revision** and the user updates the **Execution Status** to **Postponed**, he or she will receive a validation error that states, "This release entry needs revision. Please contact a POLARIS agent for clarification or select another Execution Status."

The user is required to provide details for why a release/activity was not completed as planned in the **Non-Completed Reason** free-form text field (see Figure 37). This field is enabled and must be completed only if **Calendar Review Status** is **Postponed** or **Cancelled or** if **Execution Status** is **Partially Released**, **Backed Out**, or **Cancelled**.

#### Figure 37: Non-Complete Reason

	Status Information	
Submission Status	Please select	
Execution Status	Flaseseen	
	The status of the item as it pertains to the execution	
Non-Completed Reas	n	
	Provide details why release/activity not com pleted as planned	

### 4.3.4. Release Documentation

The user may include links to the relevant **CO Numbers** in the free-form text field. Tips for the **VA URL Shortener** and the **VA Service Desk Manager** are provided for quick reference and validation (see Figure 38).

Links are allowed in the release documentation area. Please note the following restrictions:

- All user-provided links must be accessible VA-wide. Links to restricted sites are not permissible, and defeat the purpose of this calendar tool.
- Any user-provided links must point the reviewer directly and quickly to the data element which is required in the POLARIS calendar.
  - For example: Under the Back-out Plan, the user may provide a link to an installation instructions document which also contains the back-put plan; however, the user must specify "See paragraph 1.2.3 of the Installation Instructions located at hyperlink."
  - If a reviewer is unable to quickly access or determine the location of the required information, then the entry may not be approved.

**NOTE:** If documentation is already available as part of the CO or another location, the user may reference it here (e.g., "see CO"). If the user plans to follow a standard operating procedure (SOP) that has already been documented elsewhere, the user may include a reference to the source for the SOP, or attach it to the form.

#### Figure 38: CO Numbers

Release Documentation				
	TIP: VA URL Shodener			
CO Numbers				
ANR	TIP: <u>VA Service Desk Manager</u> TIP: Active Automated Notification Reports (ANR) List			

The user may include a link to the relevant **ANR** in the free-form text field. Tip for the **Active Automated Notification Report (ANR) List** is included for quick reference and validation (see Figure 39). If the release does not require an ANR and downtime was documented elsewhere on the POLARIS record, please provide a justification in the free-form text field.

#### Figure 39: ANR

Release Documentation					
	TIP: VA URL Shotener				
CO Numbers	TIP: VA Service Desk Manager				
ANR	TP: Active Automated Notification Reports (ANR) List				

The user may include a link to **Release Notes** in the free-form text field if not already included in the CO (see Figure 40).

#### Figure 40: Release Notes

Release Notes		
	(link If not attached to the CO; comma separated If multiple links (no line breaks or space \$)	

The user must include one of the following: a link to the **Installation Instructions;** a reference to the instructions documented in the CO; mention an attached document on the POLARIS record; or a brief summary of the installation in the free-form text field (see Figure 41).

#### **Figure 41: Installation Instructions**

Installation Instructions	
	(comma separated if multiple links [no line breaks or spaces])

The user must include one of the following: a link to the **Back-out Plans;** a reference to the instructions documented in the CO; mention an attached document on the POLARIS record; or a brief summary of the back-out plan in the free-form text field (see Figure 42).

#### Figure 42: Back-out Plans

Back-out Plans		
	(comma separated if multiple links (no line breaks or spaces))	1 <b>8</b> -1

**NOTE:** Back-out and Rollback are often used in reference to this field. For EO, Back-out is to remove a recent change in infrastructure or software, whereas Rollback refers to removing data changes that have occurred, resulting from an associated change in infrastructure or software.

The user may document what equates a successful release readiness review for their release (see Figure 43).

#### Figure 43: Successful Readiness Review

Successful Readiness Review					
Attachments	O Click here to attach a file     O				
Save as POLARI	S Template	Submit		Cancel	

The user may include additional attachments by clicking on the **Click here to attach a file** button, as shown in Figure 44. The user should provide details in the **Comments** field regarding any attached document (see Figure 33: Comments).

#### Figure 44: Attachments

Attachments		il Click here to a	ittach a file		
Save as POLAR	S Template	Submit		Cancel	
Polaris Release Calerolar					Form Version: 4.16-8674

Once the user clicks on the **Click here to attach a file** button, the **Attach File** dialog box will be displayed. The user should click on the **Browse** button, as shown in Figure 45.

#### Figure 45: Attach File Browse Button

	TIP: Active	Automated Notification Reports (ANR) List		
Release Nates		Attach File		
	fin k W not i	Select a file, and then click Attach to upload it.	Brows e	
Installation Instructions				
	(comma se)			
Back-out Plans			Attach Cancel	

Once the user clicks on the **Browse** button, the user may search and **select a file** from the **Documents Library or relevant network drive**, and click on **Open**, as shown in Figure 46.

Choose File to Upload	ents 🕨 Project Files 🔍 🍕	Search Project Files	
Organize 🔻 New fold	der	≣ ▼ 🗔 🔞	
☆ Favorites ■ Desktop ● Downloads	Documents library Project Files Name	Arrange by: Folder -	In or source
SharePoint Sites	New Installation Test Script     New Installation One Pager     New Installation Communication Pla		
Documents		n	R) List
E Pictures	< []	•	ch to upload it.
File	name: 🗾 🔻	All Files (*.*)	Brows e

Figure 46: Browse Results for Attachment and Open Button

Once the user clicks on the **Open** button, the **Attach File** dialog box reappears with the file listed in the field to the left of the Browse button. The user should click on the **Attach** button to attach the selected file to the New Item entry form, as shown in Figure 47.

Figure	47:	Attach	File	Button
--------	-----	--------	------	--------

	Attach File		
-	Select a file, and then click Attach to upload it.		
fink # not a	C:\Users\vacomartic3\Documents\Project Files\New Install Brow	se	
- 2010-00		a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	
(comna se p	Attach	Cancel	
		6	

Now that the fields have been completed, the user may click on the **Submit** button to complete the New Item entry form (see Figure 48).

#### Figure 48: Submit Button

Attachments	(i) Click here to attach a file					
Save as POLARIS Template		Submit		Cancel		
The user may also cancel the entry by clicking on the **Cancel** button at the bottom of the form (see Figure 49).

### Figure 49: Cancel Button

Attachments	Icitized in the initial of the in				
Save as POLARIS Template		Submit		Cancel	

# 4.4. Creating Calendar Items by Using Templates

### 4.4.1. Creating a Template

The user may create a prepopulated new item form for a recurring calendar item by saving the entry as a template by clicking on **Save as POLARIS Template** instead of the **Submit** button (see Figure 50). There are no restrictions on duration (i.e., Release Start and Release End Dates) in a template.

### Figure 50: Save as POLARIS Template Button

Attachments	(i) Click here to attach a file				
Save as POLARIS	Template	Submit	Cancel		

*NOTE:* The Save button in Edit mode will not save changes to an existing template (see Figure 51). The user must use the Save as POLARIS Template button to save any changes made to the template.

### Figure 51: Do Not Use Save Button for Template Changes



The user may access an existing template by clicking on the **Release Template** link provided on the Quick Launch bar on the left side of the landing page. The user will see a list of the templates that he or she created, or can view a list of all templates by clicking on the **All Release Templates** tab, as shown in Figure 52.

**NOTE:** Templates for Field Ops releases will have an automatically generated filename with the naming convention of **FO RT – Event Title – YYYY-MM-DD**. Templates for other releases will have an automatically generated filename with the naming convention of **RT – Event Title – YYYY-MM-DD**. The date and time stamp will be appended to the filename and shown in military time, which will enable the user to differentiate between multiple templates that are created on the same day.

#### Figure 52: All Release Templates

RELEASES 🖗		🐼 P	OLARIS ENTERPRISE RELEASE	CALENDAR
Create a New POLARIS Release	My Releas	e Templates All Release Template	3	
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	🗌 Туре	Name	Created By	Created
	<b>1</b>	ACT	Ball, Blaine (AITC)	7/26/2016 4:46 PM
Release Templates	-	CCB 29586	Steele, Russell (Triple-i/VA-NSOC)	8/11/2016 8:51 AM
All Calendars	<b>1</b>	CCR - Monthly CRISP Patching	May, Judi L. (SMS)	7/25/2016 11:20 AM
Analysis View	-	FO RT - ALPHA (LIMIITE - 2016-07-20	Rguyen, Don (ESL)	7/20/2016 11:02 AM
	<b>1</b>	FO RT - DG_5.3_917 (VM - 2016-06-16	Leanord, Tatiana (HP)	6/16/2016 11:23 AM
Review / Approval View	<b>(11)</b>	FO RT - DGBT_1_28 - 2016-07-07	Dawson, Tim (HP)	7/7/2016 5:08 PM
Reports	1	FO RT - DGBT_1_30 - 2016-07-07	Dawson, Tim (HP)	7/7/2016 2:54 PM
Metrics	<b>B</b>	FO RT - Document the a - 2016-06-27	Juarez, David T. (AITC)	6/27/2016 4:27 PM

The user may open an existing template by clicking on it, and a completed calendar item will appear, with fields that have been prepopulated with content provided by the template's author. The **Event ID** field remains blank (see Figure 53). The user should update the **Start Date** and **End Date** fields, and edit or add any additional information that is relevant to the release for that date. Once the user makes those updates, he or she should click on the **Submit** button (see Figure 49). A copy of the entry with the new **Start Date** and **End Date** will appear on the calendar with a **Calendar Review Status** of **Pending Review**, and will be assigned a new **Event ID** for that item. The template will remain available in the list of **All Release Templates** for future use.

The user may also create a template from an existing calendar entry first by opening that item from the Calendar View or List View in **Edit** mode and then clicking on the **Save as POLARIS Template** button instead of the **Submit** button.

Please note that the Event ID field will be populated because the template was created from an existing calendar entry. The Event ID number cannot be reused; however, the user may still use that template to create new calendar entries. The user should make updates to the **Start Date** and **End Date** fields and any additional changes, and then click on the **Submit** button to create the new calendar entry will be assigned a new **Event ID**, but the template will remain available to users to create additional templates and calendar entries.

*NOTE:* For Field Ops Releases, the user should confirm the POC information, specify the week time span, and select the sites that will be deployed for that week.

Figure 53	Example of	Existing Template
-----------	------------	-------------------

Edit Edit Save Close Commit Clipboard Actions Via	•	
S PO		ISE RELEASE CALENDAR
Event ID:	here	Title: Gateway East Linux Systems Maintenance X
		Gateway East Linux Systems Maintenance X
	Point of Contact Information	
Project Manager POC:	Implementation Manager POC:	Post-Validation Tester POC:
Name: Adams. Chris. (VA-NSOC) ; Sy 😫	Name: Kujak, Shawn D. (Triple-i/VA-	Name: Castlaman. Sharri (Tripla-i/VA-NSOC) ; &
Phone number:	Phone number:	Phone number:
304-262-5270	708-938-2716	304-262-5288
Phone number Ext. (alternate):	Phone number Ext. (alternate):	Phone number Ext. (alternate):
Ex. (###) ###-####	Ex. (###) ########	Ex. (###) #######
Email:	Email:	Email:
Chris.Adams 2@va.gov	Shawn.Kujak@va.gov	Sherri.Castleman@va.gov
	Release Information	
Summary NSOC Gateway Ea	ist Linux Systems Maintenance	
Description Monthly security p	atching per VA requirements .	

### 4.4.2. Deleting a Template

The user may delete template that he or she created by hovering the cursor over the template name, clicking on the drop-down arrow, and selecting **Delete** (see Figure 54).

### Figure 54: Delete a Template

🗌 Туре	Name			
	FO RT - ALPHA (LIMIITE - 2016-07-20			
1	FO RT - DG_5.3_917 (VM - 2016-06-09		View Properties	
1	FO RT - DG_5.3_917 (VM - 2016-06-16	Ð	Edit Properties	
<b>B</b>	FO RT - DGBT_1_28 - 2016-07-07	•	Edit in Browser	
<b>B</b>	FO RT - DGBT_1_30 - 2016-07-07	•	Edit in Microsoft InfoPath	
<b>B</b>	FO RT - Document the a - 2016-06-27	Ъ	Check Out	
1	FO RT - EC_2.0_129-Fin - 2016-06-16	Ŋ	Version History	
<b>B</b>	FO RT - EC_2.0_132 - 2016-06-29		Compliance Details	
1	FO RT - eHMP Version 1 - 2016-05-04		Alert Me Send To	
1	FO RT - eHMP Version 1 - 2016-05-12	$\sim$	Delete	
(Th)		N	Delete	

### Editing, Rescheduling, or Cancelling an Existing 4.5. Calendar Item

#### 4.5.1. Editing an Existing Item

Users may edit an existing item from a calendar view or SharePoint list view. The user should first click on the entry to open the detailed form, and then click on the Edit Item icon in the upper left corner of the form to enable editing mode (as shown in Figure 55) and scroll to the field to be edited. Once edits have been completed, the user should click on the Submit button to save the edits.

UnifiedReleaseCalendar - CHR/STS				□ ×
View				
Edit Item Manage Close				
S PC	LARIS	ENTERPRIS	E RELEASE CALENDAR	
Event ID: 18			Title: CHR/STS	
	Point of Contact I			
Project Manager POC:	Implementation Man	ager POC:	Post-Validation Tester POC:	J

### **Figure 55: Edit Item Icon**

#### 4.5.2. **Rescheduling an Existing Item**

Please note that once the release has been approved (i.e., the Calendar Review Status having been set to Review Successful), the Release Start Date & Time and Release End Date & **Time** cannot be changed, nor can the user delete the item. Instead, the user must change the Execution Status to Cancelled (see Figure 36: Execution Status and Figure 37: Non-Complete Reason) and enter a New Item with the Release Start Date & Time and Release End Date & Time.

A user may change the **Release Start Date & Time** and **Release End Date & Time** only while the release is Pending Review. Once it is updated to Review Successful or Needs Revision, the **Release Start Date & Time** and **Release End Date & Time** fields are locked. The user may not delete the item. Instead, the user must update the status to **Cancelled** and provide a reason why it was not completed as scheduled. The user may then enter a **New Item** with the new Release Start Date & Time and Release End Date & Time.

#### 4.5.3. Cancelling an Existing Item

If a user needs to cancel an item that has a Calendar Review Status of Pending Review, then the user should change the **Execution Status** to **Postponed** or **Cancelled** and provide the reason for the cancellation (see Figure 34: Calendar Review Status and Figure 37: Non-Complete Reason). POLARIS

Once the **Calendar Review Status** has been changed to **Review Successful**, the item is frozen. If a user needs to cancel or reschedule a "**Review Successful**" item, then the user must update the **Execution Status** as **Partially Released**, **Backed Out**, **Postponed**, or **Cancelled** (see Figure 36: Execution Status and Figure 37: Non-Complete Reason).

# 4.6. Views and Reports

Users may review calendar items in a number of predefined views, or create custom reports by setting a series of parameters for the search. Links to predefined views are provided on the left side of the landing page, as well as a series of tabs provided at the top of the center of the screen. Step-by-step instructions for creating a custom report are also provided in this section.

### 4.6.1. All Calendars, Analysis, and Review/Approval Views

Users may view calendar items in predefined views for **All Calendars, Analysis View,** or **Review/Approval View** by clicking on the corresponding link on the left side of the screen (see Figure 56).

RELEASES 🖗			🐼 P	OLARI	S ENTE	RPRISE RELEA	SE CALENDA	R	
Create a New POLARIS Release	Next 14	Days My Releases To	oday's Releases Monthly	Releases Next 7 Days	Next 30 Days Ne:	xt 60 Days			
Create a New POLARIS	Next 14 D	Days							
Field Ops Release	D ID	Title	Release Child Calendar	Summary	Release Start	Release End	Release Category	Site (s)	Calendar Review Status
Release Templates All Calendars	6578	Virtual VA Weekly Maintenance Window	VBA	Virtual VA weekly maintenance window mainly used to fix stuck documents	2/23/2017 12:00 AM	2/23/2017 1:00 AM	VBA Business Program	Region 5	Review Successful
Ana lysis View	7201	NSOC Gateway North Linux Systems Maintenance	: IT Infrastructure	NSOC Gateway North Linux Systems Maintenance	2/23/2017 1:00 AM	2/23/2017 5:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
Review / Approval View	7205	NSOC Gateway North SIEM Systems Maintenance	IT Infrastructure	NSOC Gateway North SIEM Systems Maintenance	2/23/2017 1:00 AM	2/23/2017 5:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
Reports Metrics	7521	BETA (Windows 7) Adobe Reader 11.0.19 Per Nationa CO389554 FY17 - CO388339 FY17	IT Infrastructure al	BETA (Windows 7) Adobe Reader 11.0.19 Per National CO389554FY17 - CO388339FY17	2/23/2017 1:00 AM	2/23/2017 4:00 PM	Client Technologies	Field Ops Locations	Review Successful
	7580	VTS - PROD - Database	VHA	VTS - PROD - CRISP patching	2/23/2017 4:00 AM	2/23/2017 8:00 AM	VHA Business	AITC	Review Successful

Figure 56: All Calendars, Analysis View, and Review/Approval View

Users will also have the option to navigate to additional views from each of these views. For example, from **All Calendars**, users may view all releases for a predefined week, or view releases for one of the child calendars and by day of the week by clicking on the associated tabs, as shown in Figure 57.

### Figure 57: All Calendars View

		U (1999) I	polari		ISE RELEASE C	ALLINDAK			
Create a New POLARIS Release	All Releases (Calendar View)	VBA Calendar - M	'HA Calendar NCA Calendar	IT Corporate Calendar	IT Infrastructure (	Calandar II Security			
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	• • October 23 - Octo			Tr corporate calendar	TT Intestructure (	alender in Security			
Release Templates	23 Sunday	24 Monday	25 Tuesday	26 Wednesday	27 Thursday	28 Friday	29 Saturday		
			Genomics Informatics Sy	DGBT*1*30 (VHA) stem for Information Science (	GenISISy2 () (VHA)				
All Calendars			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	stem for Information Science (					
Ana lysis View				stem for Information Science (					
			Genomics Informatics Sy	stem for Information Science (	GenISISv2.0) (VHA)				
Review / Approval View		Genomics Informatics System for Information Science (GenISISv 2.0) (VHA)							
Reports				stem for Information Science (					
		Caribou CLC D	evelopment Release 3 (VHA)		SCCM 2012 Operations	al Enhancement Phase 2 (	National Release) (IT Infra		
Metrics				are Now Pilot Release (VHA)					
				are Now Pilot Release (VHA)					
esources 🗐				ering (PRE) - Inbound ePrescri n Service Point of Sales (IT In					
			veterans cantee	FB*3.5*163 (VHA)	rastructure)				
Search for a Release				IB*2*554 (VHA)					
				PRCA*4.5*310 (VHA)					
Documents & Links			SCCM 2012 Operati	onal Enhancement Phase 2 (IT	Infrastructure)				
VA Service Desk			Veteran Ap	pointment Request App (VAR)	(VHA)				
Manager (SDM)			VAE	NUMI vs. 15.0 Release (VHA)					
				MAG*3.0*173 (VHA)					
Site Changelog				crobiology Enhancements (VH					
Feedback?				Phase III - Parent CO (IT Infr	astructure)				
			DGBT*1	*28 (VHA)					
				Please Delete (VHA) LL-5 MHAS Patch 119 (VHA)					

Users may access releases scheduled within predefined range of dates from the **Analysis View** display, as well as view items on the **EO Schedule** or **SWAT Review**, by clicking on the tab above the SharePoint list. The default Analysis View shows a list of all releases on the calendar grouped by month. The user may expand or contract the list for a specific month by clicking on the +/- icon to the left of the Month of Releases heading, or may navigate to predefined expanded views for **Next 7 Days, Next 14 Days, Next 30 Days, Next 60 Days, EO Schedule, or SWAT Review** by clicking on the associated tab (see Figure 58).

Figure 58: Analysis View

RELEASES 🏼	🐼 P	OLARIS	ENTERPRISE RELEASE C	ALENDAR				
Create a New POLARIS Release	Monthly Releases No	ext 7 Days (Expanded View) Next :	14 Days (Expanded View) Next 30	Days (Expanded Vie	ew) Next 60 Day	s (Expanded View)	EO Schedule	SWAT Review
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	D Title	Release Child Calendar	Summary	Release Start	Release End	Release Category	Site(s)	Calendar Review Status
Release Templates All Calendars Analysis View	Month of Release : 20     S48 FCM: Decomm     zVM zLinux DB     LPEOSD20     Month of Release : 20	ission (Old) IT Infrastructure Server;	FCM: Decommission zVM Production zLinux DB Server (vafcmdbs20 / LPEOSD20)	3/10/2016 10:00 AM	3/10/2016 11:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	AITC	Review Successful
Review / Approval View Reports Metrics	1381 MAPD_1_17_5; 1396 CTP - Test Buil	2 VBA	Web Service - MAPD 11g - Batch CTP - Test Build new Linux Server -	4/9/2016 10:00 AM 4/21/2016 8:00 AM		VBA Business Program IT Infrastructure	Region 5 AITC	Review Successful Review Successful
	DB Servers  1450 <u>FileMan 22.2 (B</u> <u>- Lebanon)</u>	Seta Testing + VHA	vaa usctpdbs70 Updated FileMan 22.2 Remediation and Testing code	4/25/2016 10:00 AM	6/27/2016 6:00 PM	Program VHA Business Program	Region 4	Review Successful
resources 🛢	3435 CXLED: Opene	d in error IT Security	NPC - 2016 Q2 CRISP Remediation on VHANPCDBS3	4/11/2016 6:00 PM	4/11/2016 9:00 PM	IT Security Program	AITC	Review Successful
Search for a Release	3446 July Polaris Rel Rev Test	lease Needs VBA	vbaprod space request	4/1/2016 7:00 AM	4/7/2016 7:00 PM	VBA Business Program	HITC, AITC	Needs Revision
Documents & Links VA Service Desk Man ager (SDM)	3539 FMS MINX CRI Production Mor Patching	thly	PMS MINX CRISP Production Monthly Patching	4/24/2016 11:30 AM	4/24/2016 5:30 PM	IT Security Program	AITC	Review Successful
Site Changelog	<ul> <li>Month of Release : 20</li> <li>1451 FileMan 22.2 (E - Muskogee)</li> </ul>		Updated FileMan 22.2 Remediation and Testing code	5/2/2016 10:00 AM	7/8/2016 6:00 PM	VHA Business Program	Region 2	Review Successful
Feedback?	1849 Patch ESXi hos	ts with IT Security	Patch hosts with update manager	5/1/2016 10:26 AM	6/30/2016 1:00 AM	IT Security Program	AITC	Pending Review

### 4.6.2. Views by Predefined Range of Dates

Users may view calendar items by a predefined range of dates, as specified to the right of the **My Releases** tab across the top center of the screen (see Figure 59). For example, when the user clicks on **Monthly Releases** a list of releases for each month are displayed. The user may expand

POLARIS User Guide 1.9 or collapse a list of releases for a particular month by clicking on the **button** to the left of the **Month of Release** heading.

RELEASES 🏾		🛞 P (	OL∧RIS	ENTERPRISE	RELEASE CA	LENDAR		
Create a New POLARIS Release	My Releases Today's Releases Mon	thly Releases Next 7 D	Days Next 14 Days Next 30 Da	ys Next 60 Days				
Create a New POLARIS	Monthly Releases							
Field Ops Release Release Templates	D Title	Release Child Calendar	Summary	Release Start	Release End	Release Category	Site(s)	Calendar Review Status
All Calendars	Month of Release : 2016/03 (1)							
Ana lysis View 🗾	Month of Release : 2016/04 (6)							
Review / Approval View	1381 MAPD_1_17_52	VBA	Web Service - MAPD 11g - Batch	4/9/2016 10:00 AM	4/11/2016 6:00 PM	VBA Business Program	Region 5	Review Successful
Reports	1396 CTP - Test Build new Linux DB Servers	IT Infrastructure	CTP - Test Build new Linux Server - vaausctpdbs70	4/21/2016 8:00 AM	7/22/2016 7:00 PM	IT Infrastructure Program	AITC	Review Successful
Metrics	1450 FileMan 22.2 (Beta Testing - Lebanon)	VHA	Updated FileMan 22.2 Remediation and Testing code	4/25/2016 10:00 AM	6/27/2016 6:00 PM	VHA Business Program	Region 4	Review Successful
	3435 CXLED: Opened in error	IT Security	NPC - 2016 Q2 CRISP Remediation on VHANPCDBS3	4/11/2016 6:00 PM	4/11/2016 9:00 PM	IT Security Program	AITC	Review Successful
Resources 🛢	3446 July Polaris Release Needs Rev Test	VBA	v baprod space request	4/1/2016 7:00 AM	4/7/2016 7:00 PM	VBA Business Program	HITC, AITC	Needs Revision
Search for a Release	3539 FMS MINX CRISP Production Monthly Patching	IT Security	FMS MINX CRISP Production Monthly Patching	4/24/2016 11:30 AM	4/24/2016 5:30 PM	IT Security Program	AITC	Review Successful
Documents & Links								
VA Service Desk Manager	Month of Release : 2016/05 (10)							

For each of the tabs that appear on the **Landing Page**, the user may switch from the SharePoint list to a calendar view by **clicking on the link** that appears just below the tabs and above the list, as shown in Figure 60.

Figure 60: Link to Switch to Calendar View

RELEASES P	<b>POLARIS</b> ENTERPRISE RELEASE CALENDAR	
Create a New POLARIS Release	My Releases Today's Releases Monthly Releases Next 7 Days Next 14 Days Next 30 Days Next 60 Days	
Create a New POLARIS	Monthly Releases	M
Field Ops Release	D Tible Release Child Calendar Summary Release Start Release End Release Category Site(s) Calendar Review Status	
Release Templates		
All Calendars	■ Month of Release : 2016/03 (1)	
Analysis View	B Month of Release : 2016/04 (6)	
Review / Approval View	B Month of Release : 2016/05 (10)	
Reports	∃ Month of Release : 2016/06 (50)	
Metrics	a point of neress - 2020 do (30)	

The screen will display the scheduled releases for the specified dates in a calendar format, as seen in Figure 61. The user may adjust the timeframe by **clicking on a different date in the calendar icon** on the left side of the screen, go forward or back by a month by **clicking on the left or right arrows on either side of the month and year** in the calendar icon, or by **clicking on the left or right arrows just to the right of the calendar icon**.

	List Tools Calendar Tools ams List Calendar	1					Martin, Carolyn D. (7 Delta Inc.) *					
	erprise Release Cal	endar → UnifiedReleas	eCalendar → Calendar≖									
Enterprise Release Calendar												
< November, 2016 +	November 13 - Nov											
S M T W T F S	November 13 - Nov	ember 19 2016										
30 31 1 2 3 4 5	13 Sunday	14 Monday	15 Tuesday	16 Wednesday	17 Thursday	18 Friday	19 Saturday					
6 7 8 9 10 11 12				DGBT*1*30 (VHA)								
				tics System for Information S								
13 14 15 16 <mark>17</mark> 18 19				tics System for Information S								
20 21 22 23 24 25 26			Genomics Informa	tics System for Information S	cience (GenISISv2.0) (VHA)							
27 28 29 30 1 2 3				tics System for Information S								
Today is Thursday, October				tics System for Information S								
27, 2016				tics System for Information S	cience (GenISISv2.0) (VHA)							
		Care Now Pilot Relea					Apply 2016 Cost of Livin					
Create New POLARIS Entry		Care Now Pilot Relea										
				Engineering (PRE) - Inbound e								
Create New POLARIS Field Ops Entry				Canteen Service Point of Sale	s (IT Infrastructure)							
				*3.5*163 (VHA)								
				*2*554 (VHA)								
POLARIS Releases				4*4.5*310 (VHA)								
My Releases			SCCM 2012 (	Operational Enhancement Pha								
UnifiedReleaseCalendar				VAE NUMI vs. 15.0 Release								
Release Templates				MAG*3.0*173 (VHA) VLE Microbiology Enhanceme								
All Releases (List View)												
		WebOps Stack - Phase III - Perent Co (T Infrastructure) Plass Delete (VMA)										
VBA			201	E Anatomic Pathology Enhance								
VHA					eping and e-Discovery (IT Infrastruc	ture)						
NCA			cinal as a service (caas) with	CAPRI Vista Patch 193 Relea								
IT Corporate				FB*3.5*154 (VHA)	se (ann)							
IT Infrastructure				FBCS PATCH 38 ( DSIF* 3_2*	38) (VHA)							
IT Security				d Medication Copayment Tiers								
				4-1								

Figure 61: Calendar View and Settings to Adjust Timeframe

The user may also change the scope of the calendar view by clicking on the **Calendar Tools** tab and then clicking on the **Day**, **Week**, or **Month** icon in the ribbon (see Figure 62).

Figure 62: Change Scope of Calendar View

	List Tools Calendar Tools ms List Calendar						Martin, Carolyn D. (7 Delta Inc.) +			
	III 📄 🎑 🔝	* 🖻								
Day Week Month Expand Co	All Link Me Feed	Edit Form Web List Parts -								
Scope Expan	d Share & Track	Customize List								
	November 13 - Novem	ber 19 2016					/			
30 31 1 2 3 4 5	13 Sunday	14 Monday	15 Tuesday	16 Wednesday	17 Thursday	18 Friday	19 Saturday			
6 7 8 9 10 11 12				DGBT*1*30 (VHA)						
			Genomics Info	matics System for Information Sci	ence (GenISISv2.0) (VHA)					
13 14 15 16 17 18 19				matics System for Information Sci						
20 21 22 23 24 25 26				matics System for Information Sci						
27 28 29 30 1 2 3				matics System for Information Sci	· · · · · ·					
Today is Thursday, October				matics System for Information Sci						
Today is Thursday, October 27, 2016				matics System for Information Sci	ience (GenISISv2.0) (VHA)					
Create New POLARIS		Care Now Pilot Releas					Apply 2016 Cost of Living			
Entry		Care Now Pilot Release (VHA) Pharmacy Re-Engineering (PRE) - Inbound ePrescribing (eRx) (VHA)								
Create New POLARIS				ns Canteen Service Point of Sales						
Field Ops Entry				FB*3.5*163 (VHA)	(11 Inirascructure)					
		r893.5*163 (VHA) 152°2*52 (VHA)								
		10-1-2-20 (VIM) PRCA4.5*310 (VIA)								
POLARIS Releases		SCCM 2012 Operational Enhancement Phase 2 (IT Infrastructure)								
My Releases		VAE NUML vs. ISO Relass (VMA)								
Unifie dRele ase Calendar				MAG*3.0*173 (VHA)						
Release Templates				VLE Microbiology Enhancement	ts (VHA)					
All Releases (List View)			WebC	ps Stack - Phase III - Parent CO (	IT Infrastructure)					

### 4.6.3. Accessibility View

POLARIS also provides a stripped down version of the SharePoint list view of **My Releases** or **All Releases** formatted to meet Section 508 standards. Users should click on the link to **Accessibility View** that appears at the top of the screen, as shown in Figure 63.

*NOTE:* Users that benefit from Section 508 compliant views are encouraged to note the Event ID or Title for the release so that they may navigate directly to it more quickly.

### Figure 63: Accessibility View Home Page

POLARIS       Enterprise Release Calendar >         Accessibility View	
Enterprise Release Calendar	
RELEASES & Create a New POLARIS Release Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release Release Release Templates All Calendars	All Releases

When the user clicks on the link to **All Releases**, a SharePoint list view will appear with options to filter the list by Release ID or by Event Title (see Figure 64). The user can then open any release on the list by clicking on the release in the list.

### Figure 64: Accessibility View - All Releases

Enterprise Release Calendar >									
Enterprise Release Calendar									
RELEASES 🛛	Filter by ID 🛑								
Create a New POLARIS Release	Filter by Title 4								
Release Templates									
All Calendars									
Analysis View	UnifiedReleaseCalendar	r							
Review / Approval View	Release Start	Release End	Title						
Reports	6/11/2016 7:00 PM	6/12/2016 7:00 PM	16.06.CI.1 (June Coordinated Install)						

### 4.6.4. Creating Custom Reports Using Parameters

Users may extract data from the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar to create a custom report by clicking on Reports and setting parameters for specific data using the parameter options on the right side of the screen.

The user selects which **Category** to search for by selecting from the drop down menu, as shown in Figure 65. The default selection is **Select All**. The user may clear the selections by **clicking on the checkbox** next to **Select All** and then select the **Category** to search for by **clicking on the checkbox** next to its name.

### Figure 65: Specify Category

RELEASES 🖗	<b>POLARIS</b> ENTERPRISE RELEASE CAL	ENDAR
Create a New POLARIS Release	Triage Report Search By ID Search By CO Weekend Activity Status Report Application Report	
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	Actions -   (2)   14 4 of 0 > >1   4   Find Next   100% V   12 Microsoft SQL Server Reporting Services	Parameters
Release Templotes All Calendars Analysis View Review / Approval View Reports RESOURCES	Specify Parameter Values Report parameter values must be specified before the report can be displayed. Choose parameter values in the parameters area and click the Apply button.	Category: IT Corporate, IT Infrastructure, IT S M G(Select All) IT Corporate IT Infrastructure IT Infrastructure IT Security VHA VHA VHA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA VA V
Search for a Release Documents & Links VA Service Desk Manager (SDM) Site Changelog Feedback?		End Date:

The user selects the **Calendar Review Status** from the drop down list, as shown in Figure 66. The default selection is **Select All**. The user may clear the selections by **clicking on the checkbox** next to **Select All** and then select the **Calendar Review Status** to search for by **clicking on the checkbox** next to the status name.

Figure 66: Specify Calendar Review Status

RELEASES P	<b>POLARIS</b> ENTERPRISE RELEASE CAL	ENDAR
Create a New POLARIS Release	Triage Report Search By ID Search By CO Weekend Activity Status Report Application Report	
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	Actions -   ④   № 4 of 0 ▷ №   ↓ ↓ Find Next   100% ♥   ■	
Release Templates All Calendars Analysis View Review / Approval View Reports RESOURCES	Microsoft SQL Server Reporting Services  Specify Parameter Values Report parameter values must be specified before the report can be displayed. Choose parameter values in the parameters area and click the Apply button.	Parameters Category: IT Corporate, IT Infrastructure, IT S ♥ Calendar Review Status: Pending Review, Review Successfy Ø Sending Review Ø Review Successful Ø Needa Revision Ø Needa Revision
Search for a Release Documents & Links VA Service Desk Manager (SDM) Site Changelog Feedback?	,	End Date:

The user selects the **Execution Status** from the drop down list, as shown in Figure 67. The default selection is **Select All**. The user may clear the selections by **clicking on the checkbox** next to **Select All** and then select the **Execution Status** to search for by **clicking on the checkbox** next to the status name.

### Figure 67: Specify Execution Status

Create a New POLARIS Release	Triage Report Search By ID Search By CO Weekend Activity Status Report Application Report	
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	Actions -   (2)   14 4 of 0 > >   4   Find Next   100%   10 Microsoft SQL Server Reporting Services	Parameters
Release Templates All Calendars Analysis View Review / Approval View Reports RESOURCES Search for a Release Documents & Links VA Service Desk Xanager (SDM) Site Changelog	Specify Parameter Values Report parameter values must be specified before the report can be displayed. Choose parameter values in the parameters area and click the Apply button.	Category: IT Corporate, IT Infrastructure, IT S Calendar Review Status: Pending Review, Review Success Execution Status Completed Successfully, In Progrev (Select All) Completed Successfully Select All) Completed Successfully Select All) Completed Successfully Safet All Completed Successfully Select All Select All Completed Successfully Select All Select Al

The user must **Specify Begin Date** by **clicking on the calendar icon** and then **clicking on the beginning date** for the search, as shown in Figure 68.

Figure 68: Specify Begin Date

Release Triage Report Search By 10 Search By C0 Weekend Activity Status Report Application Report   Create a New POLARIS Actions +   @   H 4  of 0 P     @   @ rind Next   000% Image: Constant Constan	reate a New POLARIS	<b>POLARIS</b> ENTERPRISE RELEASE CAL		f.					
Field Ops Release       Microsoft SQL Server Reporting Services       Parameter s         Release Templates       All Calendars       Analysis View       Report parameter values must be specified before the report can be displayed. Choose parameter values in the parameters area and click       Parameter s         Review / Approval View       Reports       Escources       Second for a Release       Documents & Links         VA Service Desk       Manager (SDM)       Site Chongelog       1 1 2 3 4 5 6       1 9 10 11 12 13	elea se	Triage Report Search By ID Search By CO Weekend Activity Status Report Application Report							
Release Templates       All Calendars         Analysis View       Reports         Review / Approval View       Reports         Resources       If Calendar services         Search for a Release       Documents & Links         VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)       VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)         Ste Changeloa       Ste Changeloa		Actions -   🚱   14 4 of 0 > >1   4   Find Next   100% V   🗄							
All Calendars Analysis View Reports Resources Calendar serve allows Reports Resources Calendar Review Review Reports Resources Calendar Review Review Reports Resources Calendar Review Review Review Reports Resources Calendar Review Review Review Reports Review Rev	eld Ops Kelea <i>s</i> e	Microsoft SQL Server Reporting Services	Para	mete	ers				
All Calendars Analysis View Reports Report Report Reports Report Rep	elease Templates	Specify Parameter Values	Cate	gory:					
Analysis View the Apply button.  the Apply button.  Calendar Review Status:  Pending Review, Review Status:  Pending Review, Review Status:  Pending Review, Review Status:  Completed Successfully, In F Search for a Release Documents & Links VA Service Desk Manager (SDM) Site Changelog	ll Calendars		ITC	Corpora	ate, IT	Infra	s truct	ure, I	TS≚
Review / Approval View Reports  ESOURCES Search for a Release Documents & Links VA Service Desk Wanager (SDM) Site Changelog	na lysis View		Cale	ndar i	Review	w Sta	stus:		
Reports         Execution Status           ESOURCES         Image: Search for a Release         Mergy, 2016           Documents & Links         1         2         3         4         5         6           VA Service Desk Wanager (SDM)         15         16         17         18         19         20           Site Changelog         22         23         24         25         26         27			Per	nding F	Review	w, Re	view S	Gucce	ssf⊻
Manager (SDM)     T II     T II       Site Changelog     Site Changelog	eview / Approval View								
ESOURCES       Image: Control of the second se	eports		_				£ . II .	- 0-	
Search for a Release         Mary, 2015           Documents & Links         VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)         VI         1         1         2         3         4         5         6           Site Changelog         Site Changelog         VI         1 <th></th> <th></th> <th>Con</th> <th>npiere</th> <th>10.500</th> <th>Dess</th> <th>iuliy,</th> <th>IIIFI</th> <th>4 - T</th>			Con	npiere	10.500	Dess	iuliy,	IIIFI	4 - T
Documents & Links         X         Service Desk           Manager (SDM)         Site Changelog	Sources 🔳		Begi	in Dat	e:				
Sector to a wease         S         M         T         W         T         F           Documents & Links         VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)         1         2         3         4         5         6           Ste Changelog         15         16         17         18         19         20									Ĩ
X Service Desk     8     9     10     11     12     13       Manager (SDM)     15     16     17     18     19     20       Site Changelog     22     23     24     25     26     27	earch for a Release		•		May	<b>, 20</b> :	16		•
VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)       8       9       10       11       12       13       15       16       17       18       19       20       22       23       24       25       26       27	ocuments & Links		S	M	т	W	т	F	s
Monager (SDM)         15         16         17         19         20           Site Changelog         22         23         24         25         26         27			1	2	3	4	-	-	7
Site Changelog 22 23 24 25 26 27	A Service Desk		15	-					
Site Changelog	angger (SDM)								
29 30 31 1 2 3	• • •								

Next, the user must **Specify End Date** by **clicking on the calendar icon** and then **clicking on the end date** for the search, as shown in Figure 69. Once all of the parameters are set, the user clicks on **Apply** to generate the report.

### Figure 69: Specify End Date and Apply



The results are displayed on the screen as the **POLARIS Triage Report** (see Figure 70). This view provides a list of all calendar items that fall within those parameters. To view an individual item from this list, the user may **click on the Event ID number**.

### Figure 70: POLARIS Triage Report

RELEASES & Create a New POLARIS Release	Triage Report Search By ID	Search By CO Wee	ekend Activi	y Status Report	Application		SE CALENDAR	
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release Release Templates All Calendars Analysis View Review / Approval View Reports	Re le as		ITERPRISE	3 Next   100%	EN DAR		Parameters Category: VBA Calendar Review Status: Pending Review Execution Status NA	
RESOURCES 🗐	Category VBA 1 Total 1	Calendar Review Status Pending Review Total	1	Exe cution State NA Total	JS 1 1		Begin Date: 5/17/2018 End Date:	
Documents & Links VA Service Desk Manager (SDM) Site Changelog Feedback?	ID H2112 Lancaster, Ken (SM S) Ken.Lancaster@y.a.gov (S12) 326-6135	Description Technicians will increase the frequency of automatic rolling restarts of the WebLogic cluster for the production env tonment to once per night at 11:30 pm CST.	Cale ndar VBA	Release Start 5/17/2016 11:00 AM P	Status 0 Review : ending Review Execution: NA	•	5/18/2016	
	Report	t generated at: 5/12/20	16 9:51:08 AM	I EST				

Once the user clicks on the **Event ID** number, the details for that calendar item will be displayed, as shown in Figure 71.

### Figure 71: View Item from Triage Report

	) PO	LARIS	ENTERPRIS	E RELEASE CALENDAR					
	Event ID: 2119		Title: FFP Automatic Rolling Restarts						
Point of Contact Information									
Project Manag	jer POC:	Implementation Mar	nager POC:	Post-Validation Te	ster POC:				
Name: Lancaster, Ken (SMS)		Name: Lancaster, Ken (SMS)		Name: Gottlieb, Mitchell S. (By Light)					
Phone number: (512) 326-6135		Phone number: (512) 326-6135		Phone number: (512) 970-1544					
Phone number (alternate): (512) 318-4317	Ext.	Phone number (alternate): (512) 318-4317	Ext.	Phone number Ext. (alternate): (512) 970-1544					
Ex. (###) ########		Ex. (###) ###-####		Ex. (###) ### #####					
Email: Ken.Lancaster@va.gov		Email: Ken.Lancaster@va.gov		Email: mitchell.gottlieb@va.gov					
Release Information									
Summary	FFP Increase frequ	FFP Increas e frequency of automatic rolling restarts.							
Description	Technicians will in once per night at 1		rolling restarts of the	WebLogic cluster for the production	environment to				

### 4.6.5. View Metrics Reports

Users may also extract data from POLARIS to view metrics reports by clicking on Metrics, selecting the criteria for the metrics from the tabs, and specifying the start and end date for the report. The report will display a summary of metrics at the top, followed by a graphical depiction of the metrics, as well as a list of relevant calendar entries. Users may view metric reports for the following:

- Successful Release Report
- Postponed/Cancelled Release Report
- Non-Attendance Report
- Creation to Start <-72 Hours
- Creation to Start <-1 Week
- Creation to Start<-2 Weeks

The Postponed/Cancelled Release Report is provided below as an example. The user may refine the report by entering parameters for the **Begin Date**, **End Date**, and in the case of this report, **Select Chart Type** (e.g., column, pie), the click on the **Apply** button (see Figure 72).



Figure 72: Postponed/Cancelled Release Report

# 4.7. Search for a Release

There are a number of options for searching for a specific release using the SharePoint search functionality, as well as report features customized for POLARIS. The following options offer the best and most relevant results. Context or examples are provided so that the user may decide what works best for a unique set of circumstances.

POLARIS User Guide 1.9

### 4.7.1. Search for a Release by Event ID

The user may search for a calendar item by Event ID Number by clicking on the Reports link, clicking on the **Search by ID** tab, clicking on the drop down arrow on the right side of the screen to open the field, enter the number, and then click **Apply** (see Figure 73).

**NOTE:** This search is often used by the Calendar Agents to search for follow up messages during or after the POLARIS Calendar Review meetings.

RELEASES 🖗				) P (	DLΛ	RIS	ENTERPRISE RELEASE CALENDAR	
Create a New POLARIS Release	Triana D	eport Search By ID Search By ID	earch By CO W	online of the line	h. Chakus Dana	- Analiantia	Person	
Create a New POLARIS			→ →1 + ↓ ↓ ↓		d Next   100%		Inc.put C	
Field Ops Release				80				Parameters
Release Templates		) POLA	KI2 '	NTERPRISE	RELEASE CA	LENDAR		Please enter each ID on a new line:
All Calendars Analysis View			Search By II Including IDs : 18	<u>)</u> 92				1892
Review / Approval View	ID 🕀	PM POC 👙	Description	Calendar 🖯	Release 👙	Status 🕀		
Reports	E 1892	Bowe, John	Sustainment	VBA	Start 5/31/2016 07:00	Review :		
RESOURCES 🛢		john. bow e @va.gov (708) 681-6625	activities for the following batch applications are being applied:		АМ	Review Successful Execution:		
Search for a Release			DFAS CRSC RS SSA Income			Completed Successfully		
Documents & Links			DOD Miltary Retirement Venfication					
VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)		Report g	enerated at: 6/1/2	016 12:20:10 AM	M EST			•
Site Changelog								
Feedback?								

Figure 73: Search by ID Report

The user may view additional information by clicking on the +/- icon to the left of the Event ID Number to display the **Title, Application Name, System Name, Implementation POC,** and **Post-Validation POC fields**, as shown in Figure 74.

**NOTE:** This search is often used by the Calendar Agents to search for follow up messages during or after the POLARIS Calendar Review meetings.

Create a New POLARIS Release	Triage Re	port Search By ID S	earch By CO W		NRI ty Status Repo		on Report		
ireate a New POLARIS ield Ops Release	Actions •		) )   ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (	Fin	d Next   100%		[		ameters
Release Templates		POLA	RIS "	NTERPRISE	RELEASE CA	LENDAR			ase enter each ID on a new line: 92
All Calendars Analysis View			Search By II Including IDs:18						
Review / Approval View	ID 🕀	PM POC 👙	Description	Calendar 👙	Release 👙 Start	Status 🕀			
ESOURCES	► <u>1892</u>	Bowe, John john.bowe@va.gov (708) 681-6625	Sustainment activities for the following batch applications are being applied:	VBA	5/31/2016 07:00 AM	Review : Review Successful Execution: Completed			
Search for a Release Documents & Links /A Service Desk			DFAS CRSC IRS SSA Income DOD Military Retirement Venflication			Successfully			
VA Selvice Desk Manager (SDM) Site Changelog		SNET MayBatch Sprint	Implementa Name: Fister, Ronald J. (R		Post-Valid Name :	ation POC;		•	
Feedback?	[Oth Bat	<u>lication Name;</u> er](Other) h Applications	Contractor) Email: ronald.fister@va.go	v	Ema il:				
	VET	<u>tem Name:</u> SNET h Applications	Phone: (708) 681-6873		Phone:				
		Report g	enerated at: 6/1/20	016 12:20:10 AI	MEST				

Figure 74: Search by ID Report Result – Additional Information

### 4.7.2. Search by Change Order Number

The user may also search for a calendar item by its associated Change Order Number by clicking on the Reports link, clicking on the **Search by CO** tab, clicking on the drop down arrow on the right side of the screen to open the field, enter the number, and then click **Apply.** The user may view additional information by clicking on the +/- icon to the left of the Event ID Number to display the **Title, Application Name, System Name, Implementation POC,** and **Post-Validation POC fields**. The results are shown in Figure 75.

**NOTE:** This search is often used by the Calendar Agents to validate if entries are complete and the CO workflows are up to date prior to the Calendar Review meetings.

#### Figure 75: Search by CO Number Report

Release Create a New POLARIS			Search By CO W		ty Status Repo	t Application	Report	
Field Ops Release Release Templates	Actions •			20	RELEASE CA			Parameters Please enter a CO number: CO3368657FY16
All Calendars Analysis View		1	Search By C noluding CO: CO3365	0 957FY16				COSCOPPTIO
Review / Approval View	ID 🕀	PM POC ≑	Description	Calendar 👙	Release ⊜ Start	Status 👙		
Reports ESOURCES 🖨 Search for a Release Documents & Links	⊞ <u>1892</u>	Bowe, John john.bowe@va.gov (708) 681-6625	Sustainment activities for the foliowing batch applications are being applied: DFAS ORSC IRS SSA income DOD Mitany Retirement	VBA	5/31/2016 07:00 AM	Review : Review Successful Execution: Completed Successfully		
VA Service Desk Manager (SDM) Site Changelog Feedback?	App [Oth Bat Sys	SNET MayBatch Sprint <u>plication Name :</u> her](Other) th Applications stem Name :	Verflication Implementa Name : Fister, Ronald J. (R Contractor) Ema it: ronald.fister@va.go	R5 HIN	Post-Valid Name : Ema il: Phone :	ation POC:		•
	Bat <u>CO</u>	ISNET ch Applications <u>Number(s):</u> 336957FY16	Phone: (708) 681-6873					
		Report ge	nerated at: 5/31/20	16 10:58:33 PM	EST			

### 4.7.3. Search within a Defined SharePoint List View

The user may search for a calendar item by Event ID number within a defined SharePoint List View by clicking on the down arrow to the right of the Event ID column and selecting the corresponding ID number, as shown in Figure 76, or selecting a filter from another column.

**NOTE:** A predefined view, such as the one used during the POLARIS Calendar Review calls, will only display items that match the filters applied. The user may clear the filter to expand the list of items to search from, but the predefined view will be altered and results will no longer be sorted by the original filters unless the user reinstates those selections.

		Enterpris	e Release Cale	ndar → UnifiedRelease	:Calendar + Next 14 Day	∕s - Full≖		
۴U		<b>&gt;</b>						
Enterpris	se Release Cale	endar						
Create Entry	New POLARIS		tle	Release Child Calendar	Customer/User Community	📄 Implementation Manager	📄 Project Manager	Release Start
Creat	2259	^ s	tart : 5/31/2016	(3)				
Field	2262		VAO - Annual	VBA	VBA	Walsh, Donalyn, PITC	Patterson, Robert, PITC	5/31/2016 10:00
	2264		VA-ONCE User Defined					
POLA	2266	_	Corrections					
My Re	2278		update HDS	IT Infrastructure	OI&T	Castro, Beatriz (HITC)	Dale-Roos, Lynda (AITC)	5/31/2016 6:00 P
Unifie	2279		Hi-Track software					
Relea:	2280		from C.B to C.D @ HITC					
All Rel	2281		VSP-94722					
VBA	2284		Chapter 33 Linux	VBA	VBA	Perkins, Jasmine (SMS/TREX)	Perkins, Jasmine (SMS/TREX)	5/31/2016 8:00 P
VHA	2285		Patching -					
NCA	2288		Prod					
IT Co	2289							
IT Infi	2290							
IT Sec	2294							
	2299	$\sim$						
Relea Perio	2301							
	Releases							
Monthly								
Next 7 D		Belease S	tart : 6/1/2016 (	7)				
Next 14	· ·	2278	NSOC	IT Infrastructure	Other	🦲 Kujak, Shawn D. (Triple-i/VA-NSOC)	Adams, Chris (VA-NSOC)	6/1/2016 3:00 AM
Next 30	Days		Gateway West					
Next 60	Days		Systems Remedia ion Maintenance					
Resourc	: e Links	2433	VTS - PROD	VHA	VHA	Bryant, David (SMS)	Gorchs, Diane C. (AITC)	6/1/2016 1:30 PM
Automat	ed Notification		- Amarillo - Declay Trip					

### Figure 76: Search a List View Using a Filter



The SharePoint list view may only display some releases that match a filter if the results exceed 100 items. To navigate to the next or previous 100 items within that view, the user should scroll down to the bottom of the list and click on the left or right arrows, as shown in Figure 77.

Figure 77: List Navigation to Next or Previous 100 Items

7515	Creation of additional vNics for Gateway South Cisco UCS/VMware Converged Infrastructure	IT Infrastructure	Creation of additional vNics for Gateway South Cisco UCS/VMware Converged Infrastructure	3/2/2017 1:00 AM	3/2/2017 5:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Pending Review
7543	BPE ESCCB 3944	VBA	BPE ESCCB 3944	3/2/2017 1:00 AM	3/2/2017 1:30 AM	VBA Business Program	Terremark	Pending Review
7620	PROD (LIMITED Windows 7) Adobe Acrobat 11.0.19 Per National CO389558FY17 - CO388340FY17 ® MM	IT Infrastructure	PROD (LIMITED Windows 7) Adobe Acrobat 11.0.19 Per National CO389558FY17 - CO388340FY17	3/2/2017 1:00 AM	3/2/2017 4:00 PM	Client Technologies	Field Ops Locations	Pending Review
7544	BPE ESCCB 3952	VBA	BPE ESCCB 3952	3/2/2017 2:00 AM	3/2/2017 2:30 AM	VBA Business Program	Terremark	Pending Review
			[	1-100 🕨				

### 4.8. Resources

Links to a document library and resource links, as well as a link to the VA SDM site are provided via the Quick Launch bar on the left side of the landing page.

### 4.8.1. Documents and Links

Additional POLARIS related information is provided via **Documents & Links** on the Quick Launch bar on the left side of the landing page. The user may access POLARIS documentation

POLARIS User Guide 1.9 by clicking on the **Resource Documentation** tab, as shown in Figure 78. POLARIS resource documentation includes, which includes an electronic copy of the current **POLARIS User Guide**, the **POLARIS Quick Start** guide, and other supporting documentation.

RELEASES 🖗	POLARIS ENTERPRISE RELEASE CALENDAR
Create a New POLARIS Release	Resource Documentation Resource Links
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	Type Name
Release Templates	□ Category : Governance (4)
All Calendars	🔁 Calendar Approvals and Responsibilities
	🏗 🛛 POLARIS Calendar Organization Staffing and Governance Responsibilities
Analysis View	DOLARIS Required Entries v1.3
Review / Approval View	VIP Tools Memo (signed)
Reports	Gategory : POLARIS (6)
Metrics	POLARIS - Creating an A La Carte Report
	POLARIS Calendar Meetings Schedule
RESOURCES 🔳	POLARIS Implementation
	POLARIS Quick Start
Search for a Release	1 POLARIS User Guide Version 1.6
Documents & Links	1 POLARIS User Training v1.2
VA Service Desk	Gategory : VBA (1)
Manager (SDM)	Wa Escalation Chart
Site Changelog	I Add document
Feedback?	

Figure 78: Documents & Links – Resource Documentation

The user may also access links to other VA resources referenced in the new item form, such as the ANR list, by clicking on the **Resource Links** tab and then clicking on the hyperlink in the list, as shown in Figure 79.

Figure 79: Documents & Links - Resource Links

RELEASES 🖗	<b>POLARIS</b> ENTERPRISE RELEASE CALENDAR
Create a New POLARIS Release	Resource Documentation Resource Links
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	Category : IT Infrastructure (1) B ED Referse Calendar
Release Templates	Gategory : IT Security (1)
All Calendars	<ul> <li>NSOC Mandatory Database Security Scan Schedule</li> <li>Category : POLARIS (2)</li> </ul>
Ana lysis View	VA Service Desk Manager     Automated Notfication Reports (ANR) List
Review / Approval View	□ Category : VBA (2)
Reports	OBP1 Testing Request Tracter     OBP1 Westend Manager Calendar     OBP1 Westend Manager Calendar
Metrics	I Add new link
RESOURCES 🛢	w Add new link
Search for a Release	
Documents & Links	
VA Service Desk	
Manager (SDM)	
Site Changelog	
Feedback?	

### 4.8.2. VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)

The user may also access the VA SDM site via the link on the Quick Launch bar on the left side of the landing page. The link will take the user to his or her home page in SDM (see Figure 80).



	-
CA Service Desk Manager	ſ
setoneen	ł
Home   About   Help	
Search for a Solution Search for a solution using keywords:	
Search for a solution using keywords.	
Customer Service	
Create a new Request	
Service Desk contact information and hours of operation	
Lookup my existing tickets You have 0 open requests	
You have 21 closed requests	
You have 0 open change orders You have 0 toised change orders	
Tou have a closed change dides	
If you know the number, please enter:	
A request number:	
Go	
OR a change order number:	
Announcements	
04/09/2015 08:22 pm You may access reports at Business Objects 3.1 SP6 Infoview	
07/03/2013 08:32 am (emergency)	
ATTENTION: Service Request tickets created through the self-service interface are NOT protected by encryption. Personally Identifiable Information (PII) and Protected Health Information should never be entered into Request tickets or ticket attachments under any circumstance.	
05/27/201201:29 am Instructions for getting SDM access can be found by referencing KD ID# 402523.	
Please Note: SDM is not compatible with SuperAdmin accounts, there accounts cannot be used for SDM access. All new USD analysts are required to completes SDM Foundational Training which will be automatically sent through the Analyst Access Change Order process.	
05/27/201201:22 am To view contact information, request forms, and information about system outages please visit the National Service Desk intranet page. Rease note we are	
not able to receive encrypted e-mails so PII should not be included.	
(Show All Announcements)	1

# 5. Troubleshooting

Users may contact the National Service Desk via 1-855-673-4357 or National Service Desk - Austin (<u>cdco-nsd@va.gov</u>) to report incidents and break fixes.

Users are advised to raise any content issues directly with the Project Manager's POC prior to the POLARIS Review meetings or with the group for discussion during the POLARIS Review meeting.

Users may reach out to the POLARIS Calendar Agents with process questions or general use of the tool by sending a request to the VA IT POLARIS Calendar Agents mail group (VAITPOLARISCalendarAgents@va.gov). Please identify the entry by ID and title, describe the issue or question, and provide a screenshot, if applicable.

Users may also provide feedback for future enhancements or process suggestions via the User Feedback Form, as described in <u>Section 5.1 User Feedback</u>.

# 5.1. User Feedback

The user has the option of providing feedback directly to the POLARIS team via the **User Feedback Form**, which is accessible via the link on the Quick Launch bar on the left side of the landing page (see Figure 81.)

POLARIS User Guide 1.9

### Figure 81: Feedback Link

RELEASES P			🛛 💓 F	°OLARI.	S entei	RPRISE RELEA	SE CALENDA	R	
Create a New POLARIS Release	Next 14 Days	My Releases	Today's Releases Month	ly Releases Next 7 Days	Next 30 Days Nex	kt 60 Days			
Create a New POLARIS Field Ops Release	Next 14 Days		Release Child Calendar	Summary	Release Start	Release End	Release Category	Site (s )	Calendar Review Status
Release Templates All Calendars	6578 Virtu	al VA Weekly tenance Window	VBA	Virtual VA weekly maintenance window mainly used to fix stuck documents		2/23/2017 1:00 AM	VBA Business Program	Region 5	Review Successful
Ana lysis V iew		C Gateway North Li ems Maintenance	nux IT Infrastructure	NSOC Gateway North Linux Systems Maintenance	2/23/2017 1:00 AM	2/23/2017 5:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
Review / Approval View		C Gateway North Si ems Maintenance	IEM IT Infrastructure	NSOC Gateway North SIEM Systems Maintenance	2/23/2017 1:00 AM	2/23/2017 5:00 AM	IT Infrastructure Program	NSOC	Review Successful
Reports Metrics	Read CO3	A (Windows 7) Adob der 11.0.19 Per Nati 89554 PY17 - 88339 PY17		BETA (Windows 7) Adobe Reader 11.0.19 Per National C 0389554Py17 - C 0388339Py17	2/23/2017 1:00 AM	2/23/2017 4:00 PM	Client Technologies	Field Ops Locations	Review Successful
ESOURCES		- PROD - Database er Patching DHV	VHA	VTS - PROD - CRISP patching	2/23/2017 4:00 AM	2/23/2017 8:00 AM	VHA Business Program	AITC	Review Successful
Search for a Release		2 Mainframe - z/VM xistence PTFs on VM		Install coexistence PTFs on VMPA in preparation for the installation of z13 hardware upgrades and the z/VM upgrade to version 6.4.	2/23/2017 7:00 AM	2/23/2017 12:00 PM	IT Infrastructure Program	AITC	Pending Review
VA Service Desk Manager (SDM)		2 Mainframe - z/VM xistence PTFs on VM		Install coexistence PTFs on VMPA in preparation for the installation of z13 hardware upgrades and the z/VM upgrade to version 6.4.	2/23/2017 7:00 AM	2/23/2017 12:00 PM	IT Infrastructure Program	AITC	Review Successful
Site Changelog Feedback?		-Install/upgrade D tagent	PA IT Infrastructure	SoD - INstall/upgrade DPA client agent across multiple data centers	2/23/2017 10:00 AM	2/23/2017 2:00 PM	IT Infrastructure Program	AITC, HITC, QITC, PITC, CRRC	Review Successful

Once the user clicks on the Feedback link, the User Feedback Form will appear, as shown in Figure 82.

#### Figure 82: User Feedback Form



### 5.1.1. Fields for User Input

POLARIS					
		Site Feedback			
<u>Chan</u>	<u>ре Туре</u>	Please Select.		~	
Topic of Feedback				*	
				*	
Description					
				_	
Comments					
Attachments					
	8 Clie	ok here to attach a file			

The user is required to provide the **Topic of Feedback** and **Description** in the free-form text fields (see Figure 83).

Figure 83: Required Fields

Users and the POLARIS team may add additional information in the **Comments** free-form text field. Each comment will include a date/time stamp and the author of the comment. Comments added by the POLARIS team will address any follow up actions taken in response to the feedback (see Figure 84).

#### Figure 84: Comments

Description	*
Comments	

The user may also attach a file to the User Feedback Form by clicking on the **Click here to attach a file** button (see Figure 85). One example of an attachment would be a screenshot of an error message.

POLARIS User Guide 1.9

#### Figure 85: Attach a File

Comments	
	Attachments:
	(i) Click here to attach a file

Once the user clicks on the **Click here to attach a file** button, the **Attach File** dialog box will be displayed. The user should click on the **Browse** button, as shown in Figure 86.

#### Figure 86: Attach File Browse Button

Attach Fle	
Select a file, and then click Attach to upload it.	
	Browse
	Attach Cancel

Once the user clicks on the **Browse** button, the user may search and **select a file** from the **Documents Library or relevant network drive**, and click on **Open**, as shown in Figure 87.

Figure 87: Browse Results for Attachment and Open Button

Choose File to Upload				
🕒 🗢 📕 🕨 Librar	es 🕨 Documents 🕨 Project Files 🔹 👻 🖌 Search Proj	ject Files 🔎		
Organize 👻 New f	lder	:= - 1 📀		
Recent Places SharePoint Sites	Documents library Project Files	ange by: Folder 🔻		
📜 Libraries	Name			
Documents	🖭 Error Message screenshot			
🌙 Music	New Installation Test Script			
Pictures	🖷 New Installation One Pager			
📑 Videos	Mew Installation Communication Plan			
👰 Computer 麊 OSDisk (C:)	🐏 New Installation Workflow			
	III	- F		
Fi	name: Error Message screenshot	-		
	Open	Cancel		
	Attach Cancel			

POLARIS User Guide 1.9 Once the user clicks on the **Open** button, the **Attach File** dialog box reappears with the file listed in the field to the left of the Browse button. The user should click on the **Attach** button to attach the selected file to the User Feedback Form, as shown Figure 88.

### Figure 88: Attach File Button

Attach Fle	
Select a file, and then click Attach to upload it.	
C:\Users \vaccomartic3\Documents \Project Files \Error Mess	Browse
-	
A	ttach Cancel

The file name of the attachment will appear just below the **Click here to attach a file** button, as shown in Figure 89. The user may remove an attachment by clicking on the red **X** icon.

### Figure 89: File Attached

Attachments:			
0 Click here to attach a file			
Error Message screenshot.docx			

After the user completes the required fields, he or she may click on the **Submit** button to complete the User Feedback Form to save the entry or click on **Close the Form** to exit without saving (see Figure 90).

### Figure 90: Submit or Close the Form



### 5.1.2. Fields for POLARIS Team Input

The POLARIS team will identify what type of change may be required to address the issue identified by the user by selecting from the drop down menu for **Change Type**, as shown in Figure 91.

#### Figure 91: Change Type



At the initial entry, the **Issue Status** is automatically set as **Active**. The POLARIS team will meet on a recurring basis to review each user feedback entry to determine the appropriate next steps to address it. Follow up action will be monitored through to resolution, at which time the **Issue Status** will be updated to **In CCB Review**, **Resolved**, or **Closed** (see Figure 92).

Figure 92: Issue Status Drop Down List

For Administrative Use Only						
Issue Status	Active In CCB Review					
Priority	Work in Progress Resolved Closed					
Due Date						

User feedback will also be assigned a priority from the three options shown in the drop down list in Figure 93. The default setting is **Low** (8 - 10 weeks), which may be elevated based on results of the feedback review and any follow up actions assigned by the POLARIS team.

#### Figure 93: Priority Drop Down List

For Administrative Use Only						
Issue Status	Active					
Priority	Low (8 - 16 weeks) Medium (2 - 8 weeks)					
Due Date	High (Immediate Need)					
Assigned To	5, D					
	Submit Close the Form					

The POLARIS team will assign a **Due Date** using the **calendar icon** as shown in Figure 94.

#### Figure 94: Due Date Calendar Icon

For Administrative Use Only									
Issue Status	[	Active						•	✓
Priority		Low (8 -	16	veek	s)			•	·
Due Date		_ 1		Apr	il. 2	016			+
Assigned To		S	м	т	w	т	F	s	1,× 00
	_	27	28	29	30	31	1	2	
	Submit	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	
		10	11	12	13	14	15	16	
		17	18	19	20	21	22	23	
		24	25	26	27	28	žŝ	30	

The POLARIS team will also assign the follow up actions to an individual by completing the **Assigned To** field. There are two options to enter and validate the POC's name and contact information.

The POLARIS team member may enter the **last name** then a **comma** and the **first name** in the **Assigned To** field, and then click on the **Check Name Icon** on the right, or may search for the name and contact information using the **Browse** button (see Figure 95).

#### Figure 95: Assigned To

Due Date		
Assigned To		\$./ 🛄 🦛
	Submit	Clos e the Form

### 5.2. Special Instructions for Error Correction

Users may not delete a calendar item once it is entered. If a user has entered an item in error, or a duplicate item, the user is advised to change the status to cancelled and provide the reason for the cancellation.

# 6. Acronyms and Abbreviations

The following acronyms and abbreviations appear in this document. Please see <u>Appendix A:</u> <u>POLARIS Glossary of Calendar Item Data</u> for a list and descriptions for the fields that appear in the New Item entry form.

Acronym or Abbreviation	Description
AD	Active Directory
AITC	Austin Information Technology Center
ANR	Automated Notification Reporting
BPS	Benefit Product Support
CAG	Citrix Access Gateway
CI	Configuration Item
CO	Change Order
CRRC	Enterprise Project Structure
DOD	Department of Defense
EO	Enterprise Operations
EPMO	Enterprise Program Management Office
EPS	Enterprise Project Structure
EST	Eastern Standard Time
FOIA	Freedom of Information Act
GAL	Global Address List
GFE	Government Furnished Equipment
GUI	Graphical User Interface
HITC	Hines Information Technology Center
ID	Identification
IT	Information Technology
NCA	National Cemetery Administration
NSD	National Service Desk
NSOC	Network Security Operations Center
OBPI	Office of Business Process Integration
OI&T	Office of Information and Technology
ORM	Office of Resource Management
PD	Product Development
PITC	Philadelphia Information Technology Center
PMAS	Project Management Accountability System
POC	Point of Contact

Acronym or Abbreviation	Description
PS	Product Support
QITC	Quantico Information Technology Center
SDE	Service Delivery and Engineering
SDM	Service Desk Manager
SOP	Standard Operating Procedure
TRT	Testing Request Tracker
VA	Department of Veterans Affairs
VASD	VA Service Desk
VASI	VA System Inventory
VBA	Veterans Benefit Administration
VBMS	Veterans Benefits Management System
VDL	VA Software Library
VHA	Veterans Health Administration
VHAMC	VHA Medical Center
VIP	Veteran-Focused Integration Process
VIPR	Veteran-Focused Integration Process Request
VM	Virtual Machine
VPN	Virtual Private Network
VR&E	Vocational Rehabilitation and Employment
WITS	Work Intake and Tracking System

# 7. Appendix

# A.1. POLARIS Glossary of Calendar Item Data

The following fields/terms, descriptions, and definitions appear in the Enter New Item form on the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar. The fields are listed in the order they appear on the form. Not all fields are required.

Field/Term	Description/Menu Options	Additional Information
Event ID	Required field; automatically populated field	Event ID is populated once the New Item is submitted.
Title	Required field; free-form text field	
Point of Contact Information	This section includes the following fields for the <b>Project Manager</b> <b>POC</b> , <b>Implementation Manager</b> <b>POC</b> , and the <b>Post-Validation</b> <b>Tester POC</b> .	The POC information may be pulled directly from the VA Global Address List (GAL) or from Active Directory (AD); however, the user may need to manually enter the alternate phone number, especially for release activities that are scheduled outside of standard business hours, or during weekends or holidays.
Project Manager Point of Contact (POC)	Required field	<b>Project Manager POC</b> information is required at the time the initial entry is created, so the user is encouraged to have this information ready before beginning the entry. The Project Manager is responsible for the development and management of the initiative.
Implementation Manager POC	Not required at initial entry, but required during planning and before the briefing and execution of the release.	User is encouraged to provide the Implementation Manager POC information prior to briefing the status at the POLARIS Review meeting. The Implementation Manager is responsible for the hands-on installation of the release. This field is optional, and if left blank, the assumption is the POC for the Project Manager and POC for the Implementation Manager are the same individual.

Field/Term	Description/Menu Options	Additional Information
Post-Validation Tester POC	Not required at initial entry, but required during planning and before the briefing and execution of the release.	For VBA releases, the user is encouraged to coordinate assignment of testers with OBPI as soon as possible and at least two weeks before the execution of this release by using the <b>Testing Request Tracker</b> (TRT). OBPI's TRT is a resource employed by VBA business lines, and therefore is required only for VBA releases. For all releases, the user should provide the lead <b>Post-</b> <b>Validation Tester POC</b> information during the planning phase and prior to briefing the status at the POLARIS Review meeting. A link to the TRT is provided on the Quick Launch navigation bar on the left side of the screen on the POLARIS landing page.
Name	Required field for Project Manager (PM) POC; <b>Check Name</b> button or <b>Browse</b> option to validate manual entry; default for PM POC automatically populates user's name	<b>Check Name</b> validates entry against content in the GAL; <b>Browse</b> validates entry against content in AD.
Phone Number	Required field for PM POC; automatically populated; default for PM POC automatically populates user's	<b>Check Name</b> validation of POC name will automatically populate this field from content in the GAL; <b>Browse</b> validation of POC name will automatically populate this field from content in AD.
Phone Number (alternate)	Free-form text field; manual entry required; recommended format (###) ###-####	User is encouraged to provide this information for releases scheduled outside of routine business hours, weekends, or holidays. If the user does not wish to publish personal phone numbers, then he or she may confirm to the Calendar Agent on the POLARIS review call that the office number for the POC will be forwarded to a mobile device.
Ext	Free-form text field; manual entry required	Add as needed
Email	Required field for PM POC; automatically; default for PM POC automatically populates user's	<b>Check Name</b> validation of POC name will automatically populate this field from content in the GAL; <b>Browse</b> validation of POC name will automatically populate this field from content in AD.

Field/Term	Description/Menu Options	Additional Information
Release Information	Fields in this section include: Description, Category, System Name, Application Name, Version Number, Release Start Date & Time, Release End Date & Time, Site(s), Target Environment, EPS Number, Dependencies, Planned Downtime, Primary Deployment Organization, Customer/User Community, Installation Scope, Conference Bridge, and Comments.	Most fields in this section are required, so the user is encouraged to have this information ready to create the initial entry.
Summary	Required field; free-form text field	The <b>Summary</b> should be brief, but with enough information so that when the <b>Calendar Agent</b> reads it to the participants on the POLARIS Review call, the <b>Project Manager POC</b> , <b>Implementation Manager POC</b> , <b>Post-Validation Tester POC</b> , and other users will recognize it. It should also be distinct from other calendar entries to avoid confusion.
Description	Required field; free-form text field	User must provide a brief description that will distinguish this release activity from others on the calendar. Contents of the <b>Description</b> field will not appear onscreen during the POLARIS Review call, unless the Calendar Agent leading the meeting opens the item.
Category	Required field; drop down list; list of options and descriptions provided for quick reference	User may select from the following options: VBA Business Program, VHA Business Program, NCA Business Program, IT Corporate Program, IT Infrastructure, IT Security, Client Technologies, or Scan Activity.
System Name	Required field; drop down list	If <b>Other</b> is selected, the user may provide the system name in the free form text field to the right of the <b>System Name</b> field.
Application Name	Required field; drop down list	Drop down list is based on the <u>VA</u> <u>System Inventory (VASI)</u> . If <b>Other</b> is selected, the user may provide the application name in the free form text field to the right of the <b>Application</b> <b>Name</b> field.
Version Number	Free-form text field	User may provide the applicable release <b>Version Number</b> or <b>N/A.</b>

Field/Term	Description/Menu Options	Additional Information	
Release Start Date & Time (EST)	Required field; default automatically populates current date and time (EST); select date from calendar icon; manual enter time in EST; field locked for updates if Calendar Review Status is updated to Needs Revision	All time references on the POLARIS Calendar should be provided in EST, regardless of site(s) for the release activity.	
Release End Date & Time (EST)	Required field; default automatically populates an hour from the Release Start Date & Time (EST); select date from calendar icon; manual enter time in EST; field locked for updates if Calendar Review Status is updated to Needs Revision	All time references on the POLARIS Calendar should be provided in EST, regardless of site(s) for the release activity.	
Site(s)	Check box next to name of site or multiple sites from the list provided	User may check one or more of the following options: AITC, HITC, PITC, QITC, CRRC, Terremark, VHAMC, and/or Regional Office.	
Affected Location(s)	Check box next to name of Region or Location; user may select multiple locations from the list provided	User has the option to select all locations within a Region, or select individual locations that will be affected by the release.	
Target Environment	Drop down list	User may select from the following options: Production, PreProd, Performance, Dark Domain, Certification, Integration, Prod Test, or IOC – Production.	
EPS Number	Required field; Yes/No drop down options	If Yes is selected, the EPS Number and Other fields appear. The user may select <b>N/A</b> or <b>Other</b> . If <b>Other</b> is selected, the user must include a reference number in the text box.	
VIP	Required field; <b>Yes/No</b> drop down options	If Yes is selected, the CD Approval field is displayed/enabled below it.	
CD2 Approval	Yes/No drop down options	Displayed/enabled if VIP field input is Yes.	
Dependencies	Required field; free-form text field	User lists any applications that may be impacted by this activity, including interfacing systems and subsystems. If there are no dependencies, the user is to state, <b>there are no</b> <b>dependencies</b> .	
Planned Downtime	Required field, free-form text field	User is encouraged to provide any <b>Planned Downtime</b> in EST in this field. If there is no planned downtime, the user should enter <b>N/A</b> .	

Field/Term	Description/Menu Options	Additional Information	
Primary Deployment Organization	Required field; drop down list	User selects the organizational unit responsible for the release/deployment/activity from the list. If <b>Other</b> is selected, the user may provide the explanation in the free form text field to the right of the <b>Primary Deployment Organization</b> field.	
Customer/User Community	Required field; drop down list	drop down list User selects the Business Administration/Organization (e.g., VBA, VHA, NCA, VR&E, ORM, OI&T Other) from the list. If Other is selected, the user may provide the explanation in the free form text field to the right of the Customer/User Community field.	
Installation Scope	Required field; drop down list	User identifies if the release is part of the SIO's Coordinated Installation, or if this needs to be coordinated with another release activity (e.g., <b>SIO CI</b> , <b>N/A</b> , <b>Other/explain</b> ). If <b>Other</b> is selected, the user may provide the explanation in the free form text field to the right of the <b>Installation Scope</b> field.	
Conference Bridge	Free-form text field	User may provide the dial-in number for the conference bridge here (e.g., VANTS, Lync) for coordinated install activity.	
Access Code	Free-form text field	User may provide the conference ID or access code here (e.g., VANTS, Lync) for coordinated install activity.	
Comments	Free-form text field	User may provide additional details on the release in this field.	
Status Information	Fields in this section include: Calendar Review Status, Execution Status, and Non- Completed Reason.	The default entry for Calendar Review Submission is Pending Review for all new items. Updates to the Execution Status and Non- Completed Reason fields are dependent upon a change in Calendar Review Status to Review Successful.	

Field/Term	Description/Menu Options	Additional Information	
Calendar Review Status	Required field; drop down list; Calendar Agent provides this input	Default entry for all new items is Pending Review. The drop down list includes: Pending Review, Review Successful, Needs Revision, Postponed, or Cancelled. The Calendar Agent updates the status to Review Successful or Needs Revision, based on results from the POLARIS Calendar Review meeting. Once this status is updated. The user or Calendar Agent may update the status to Postponed or Cancelled, as needed.	
Execution Status	Triggered as required field once <b>Calendar Review Status</b> changes to <b>Review Successful</b> ; drop down list; field locked if Calendar Review Status is set at Needs Revision	User makes a selection from the following options: <b>Completed</b> <b>Successfully, In Progress, Partially</b> <b>Released, Backed Out</b> , or <b>Cancelled</b> .	
Non-Completed Reason	Triggered as a required field only if Calendar Review Status is Postponed or Cancelled or if Execution Status is Partially Released, Backed Out, or Cancelled; free-form text field	User must provide details as to why a release/activity was not completed as planned.	
Release Documentation	Fields in this section include: CO Numbers, ANR, Release Notes, Installation Instructions, Back- Out Plans, Successful Readiness Review; tips and hyperlinks to the VA URL Shortener, the VA Service Desk Manager, and the Active ANR List; and allows the user to add additional Attachments, and the Submit button.	This series of fields are not required, but allow the user to provide hyperlinks to the CO Numbers, ANR, and additional release documentation that may not be included in the CO.	
Tip: VA URL Shortener	Hyperlink User is encouraged to use this shorten links provided in the free text fields for Release Documer		
CO Numbers	Free-form text field	User provides the <b>CO Numbers</b> for the release/activity here. Users are encouraged to provide the reference here, rather than in a comment or description field, for quick reference.	
Tip: VA Service Desk Manager	Hyperlink	User is encouraged to validate <b>CO</b> <b>Numbers</b> from this list.	

Field/Term	Description/Menu Options	Additional Information	
ANR	Free-form text field	User provides the <b>ANR</b> number here, rather than in a comment or description field, for quick reference. If an ANR is not required (e.g., no downtime), the user is advised to provide a justification in this field.	
Tip: Active Automated Notification Reports (ANR) List	Hyperlink	User is encouraged to validate <b>ANR</b> numbers from this list.	
Release Notes	Free-form text field	User may provide link to <b>Release</b> <b>Notes</b> if they are not already attached to the CO. Separate multiple links by a comma with no line breaks or commas.	
Installation Instructions	Free-form text field	The user is required to provide link(s) to Installation Instructions in the text field, reference the source for a Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) or reference "see CO" as appropriate. Separate multiple links by a comma with no line breaks or commas. This field cannot be blank.	
Back-out Plans	Free-form text field	The user is required to either provide link to <b>Back-out Plans</b> in the text, reference the source for a SOP or reference "see CO" as appropriate. Separate multiple links by a comma with no line breaks or commas. This field cannot be blank. (Please note that Back-out and Rollback are often used in reference to this field. For EO, Back-out is to remove a recent change in infrastructure or software, whereas Rollback refers to removing <i>data</i> changes that have occurred, resulting from an associated change in infrastructure or software.)	
Successful Readiness Review	Free-form text field	User may provide link to related documentation in the text field. Separate multiple links by a comma with no line breaks or commas.	
Attachments	Button to open Browse dialog box	User may add <b>Attachments</b> that do not fall under the other categories in this section to the New Item by clicking here to open the Browse dialog box to select the file to be attached.	

Field/Term	Description/Menu Options	Additional Information	
Save as POLARIS Template	Button	User may create a prepopulated new item form for a recurring calendar item, such as a routine maintenance release or activity that occurs on a weekly or monthly basis, by saving the entry as a template by clicking on <b>Save as POLARIS Template.</b> The template is saved to a document library and is accessible by all users. Event ID remains blank until the user clicks on the <b>Submit</b> button	
Submit	Button	User must click on the <b>Submit</b> button to save the New Item entry or any edits made to an existing item from the New Item form.	
Cancel	Button	User may cancel an entry before it is added to the calendar by clicking on the <b>Cancel</b> button. (Please note that this does not cancel and existing item on the calendar, rather it will only cancel a draft entry if the user has no already clicked on the <b>Submit</b> button for that item. To cancel an existing item, the user or Calendar Agent mus edit the <b>Calendar Review Status</b> or <b>Execution Status.)</b>	

# A.2. Calendar Approvals Process

The approval process described below is from the POLARIS Enterprise Release Calendar Review perspective, and is independent of the Change Order and other required OI&T review processes.

- 1. Preliminary: External to the calendar process, releases are subject to organizational release requirements such as ESE Release Requirements, operational acceptance, CCB, etc. Those projects subject to VIP must pass CD#2 approval.
- 2. Calendar Review The following "point of release" requirements must be met
  - a. Deployment Schedule Approved by calendar team
  - b. Deployment Resources Available to execute the release
  - c. Installation Plan Created by the planning team. Understood and approved by the organization responsible for executing the release. Success criteria are clear.
  - d. Back-out plan Created by the planning team. Understood and approved by the organization responsible for executing the release.
- 3. Back-out criteria:
  - a. For all releases planned for up to three (3) hours to install, then one (1) hour past plan is general criteria to execute the back-out plan.
  - b. For releases planned for more than three (3) hours to install, the release plan shall include interim schedule targets and clear criteria for when to execute the back-out plan.
  - c. In all cases, the release shall be planned, and back-out criteria defined, such that back-out for a failed release may be executed within the total deployment timeslot allotted.
  - d. The release manager has responsibility and authority to understand the planned release components and to make the decision (if needed) to execute back-out.
- 4. Timing of Calendar Approvals: The initial Calendar Review status is "Pending Review." Final ok is granted at the weekly calendar meeting, upon successful review of the above items. After calendar approval, the release components shall remain frozen. If changed after the calendar review, the release shall be cancelled and re-submitted through the review process.

# A.3. POLARIS Organization Roles and Responsibilities (Current and Future)

The following matrix describes the current and future POLARIS organization, as well as the roles and responsibilities for each member or group.

Role	Current	Future	Responsibilities	
Project Manager, Application Manager, or Implementation Manager (also called "user" in this guide")	Individual who is responsible for the development and management of the initiative which requires a calendar entry.	Individual who is responsible for the development and management of the initiative.	<ul> <li>Enter initial calendar entry</li> <li>Update calendar entry details</li> <li>Solicit approval from release team as appropriate</li> <li>Coordinate final readiness and ensure the details are populated in the calendar</li> <li>Perform change advisory by briefing the release at weekly calendar meeting(s) to confirm final operational readiness</li> <li>Execute the release as scheduled</li> <li>Update the release status after execution</li> </ul>	
Executive Sponsor	Originally led by the DAS, EPMO; recently transitioned to the Executive Director, EO	Executive Director, EO		

Role	Current	Future	Responsibilities
OI&T Governing Body	Originally comprised of OI&T staff detailed to create POLARIS, and currently co- led by the EO Release Supervisor and VBA Transformational Calendar Lead.	Future governing body will include representation across OI&T and the enterprise (e.g., EO application, EO infrastructure, FO, EPMO, VHA, VBA, NCA, OCIS, OI&T Corporate), and may or may not include the original POLARIS/Wichita team.	<ul> <li>Data definitions and requirements</li> <li>Define and publish metrics</li> <li>POC for transition and compliance for their organizational area</li> <li>Prioritize changes to the calendar tool</li> <li>Meet at least weekly</li> <li>Escalation point if calendar entry approval status is controversial and cannot be resolved as part of review meeting</li> <li>Direction for next phase OI&amp;T calendar, for enhanced functionality</li> <li>Phased deployment across OI&amp;T</li> <li>Ensure accomplishment of the mission and scope, as defined by CIO and executive sponsor</li> </ul>

Role	Current	Future	Responsibilities
Calendar Analysts	Individuals who currently serve as agents or analysts for VBA, EO calendars and other calendars	To be transitioned to full EO ownership; team will be comprised of EO Supervisor, and six (6) or more analysts and technical writers	<ul> <li>Prepare weekly agenda for calendar review meeting</li> <li>Conduct the weekly calendar review meeting</li> <li>Update approval entries in the calendar during or immediately after confirmation meeting</li> <li>Monitor and pursue the following:         <ul> <li>Changes that need to be on the calendar (e.g., review ANRs, COs). This is will be based on the receiving organization</li> <li>Releases not ready for approval (administrative entries)</li> <li>Check that required artifacts exist prior to confirmation meeting</li> <li>Release capacity limit reached, where applicable</li> <li>Communicating "cut-off time" for inclusion in weekly meeting</li> <li>Release status not updated after executing</li> <li>Incidents feedback loop – initial analysis</li> <li>General data integrity</li> </ul> </li> <li>Facilitate Emergency or "out of process" changes</li> <li>Collect or review feedback requests</li> <li>Assist users needing assistance</li> <li>Periodically review resource links, to ensure they are still active and appropriate</li> </ul>

Role	Current	Future	Responsibilities	
Hosting and Development	EO Supervisor plus three (3) System Administrators, Developers	No change	<ul> <li>Hosting platform</li> <li>Implement changes and bug fixes, as defined and prioritized by the POLARIS governing body</li> <li>Monitor "load" on application</li> <li>Develop phase two calendar for enhanced functionality</li> <li>Import data from existing calendars where able (to facilitate transition)</li> <li>Operate as any other OI&amp;T application</li> </ul>	

# A.4. Initial Operating Capability (IOC)

Information from VHA Data Informatics on IOC Evaluations:

It is essential that POLARIS entries for Initial Operating Capability (IOC) Production milestones with the IOC Entry and IOC Exit dates are added to the calendar upon project initiation, or as soon as possible, and that this information is updated regularly. Assistance from the POLARIS user community in providing this essential information will greatly enhance the ability of OI&T and VHA to successfully plan limited resources to support the multiple project IOC Production events and deployment to field sites.

IOC Production Testing is a milestone that requires a VA software capability to meet the minimum operational capabilities, per the documented requirements. The operational capability consists of support, training, logistics, and system interoperability within the VA operational environment. IOC is the gauging point to identify any refinement needs before proceeding to Full Operational Capability (FOC). IOC Entry is a specific date when the VA software capability will begin a limited deployment to IOC field sites. IOC Exit is a specific date when a set number of VA IOC sites successfully complete required exit criteria for testing the VA software capability in Production environments. Polaris entries that select the Target Environment of IOC – Production define the IOC Entry through use of the POLARIS entry Release Start Date. IOC Exit is represented by the Execution Status entered by the project team.

# A.5. POLARIS Workflows

Figure A-5-1 represents the process for creating, reviewing, and approving a POLARIS calendar entry for data center releases or single site releases.





Figure A-5-2 represents the process for creating, reviewing, and approving a POLARIS calendar entry for multi-site releases or multi-site infrastructure changes.



Figure A-5-2: POLARIS Workflow for Multi-site Releases or Multi-site Infrastructure Changes

# **Template Revision History**

Date	Version	Description	Author
March 2016	1.7	Updated to align with new VIP policies and processes	VIP Business Office
December 2015	1.6	Updated to align with current OI&T Documentation Standards, edited to conform with latest Section 508 guidelines, and remediated with Common Look Office tool	Process Management
June 2015	1.5	Edited to conform with Section 508 guidelines and remediated with Common Look Office tool	Process Management
May 2015	1.4	Reviewed and approved by PMAS Process Improvement Lockdown. Updated instructional test	Process Management
November 2014	1.3	Updated to conform with latest Section 508 guidelines and remediated with Common Look Office tool	Process Management
April 2014	1.2	Changed title page to clarify that version number refers to software version	Process Management
April 2011	1.1	Formatted to current ProPath documentation standards and edited to conform with latest Alternative Text (Section 508) guidelines	Process Management
June 2009	1.0	Initial Version	PMAS Business Office